
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Ben Baugh, Governance Services 
on 01432 261882 or e-mail bbaugh@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
General Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 18 June 2013 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ben Baugh, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 261882 
Email: bbaugh@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the General Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor A Seldon 
Vice-Chairman Councillor EPJ Harvey 
   
 Councillor EMK Chave  
 Councillor BA Durkin  
 Councillor DW Greenow  
 Councillor JW Hope MBE  
 Councillor RC Hunt  
 Councillor TM James  
 Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
 Councillor RL Mayo  
 Councillor R Preece  
 Councillor GR Swinford  
 Councillor DB Wilcox  
 

Voting Co-optees* 
 
(*for education 
matters only) 

Mr P Burbidge Roman Catholic Church 
Miss E Lowenstein Secondary School Governor 
Mr T Plumer Primary School Parent Governors 
Mr P Sell Church of England 

   
   
   
 
 



 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  18 JUNE 2013 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
 5 - 8 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive details of any Member nominated to attend the meeting in place of 
a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

9 - 14 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2013. 
 

 

5.   SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 
FUTURE SCRUTINY 
 

 

 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 
Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 
(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is 
raised.  Consideration will be given to whether it should form part of the 
Committee’s work programme when compared with other competing 
priorities.) 
 

 

6.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 To note questions received from the public and the items to which they 
relate. 
 
(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee meeting so long 
as the question is directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have a 
question you would like to ask then please submit it no later than two working 
days before the meeting to the Democratic Services Officer.  This will help to 
ensure that an answer can be provided at the meeting). 
 

 

7.   LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
 

15 - 54 

 To outline the Herefordshire Local Plan - Core Strategy (draft) consultation 
process and set out the responses received in response to the consultation 
undertaken between 4 March and 22 April 2013.  This report does not detail 
the content of the Core Strategy itself. 
 

 

8.   COUNCIL BUDGET 2013/14 - UPDATE 
 

 

 To receive a presentation on the latest position concerning the Council 
Budget 2013/14. 
 

 

BUDGET PRESENTATION 
 

55 - 64 

9. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

65 - 82 

 To consider the Committee work programme. 
 

 

10.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 



 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  18 JUNE 2013 
 

 

 The next scheduled meeting: Monday 8 July 2013 at 10.00am. 
 

 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public 
present if they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate, however, there will be no discussion of 
the issue at the time when the matter is raised.  Councillors will 
research the issue and consider whether it should form part of the 
Committee’s work programme when compared with other 
competing priorities. 

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny 
Committee meeting so long as the question you are asking is 
directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have a 
question you would like to ask then please submit it no later than 
two working days before the meeting to the Committee Officer.  
This will help to ensure that an answer can be provided at the 
meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be found on 
the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committee is not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 

 

 

 

 

5



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

Public Transport Links 

 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that runs 

approximately every half hour from the bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street 
(next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with 
Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located 
in the circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will 
be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 

7



8



�������������	
���
�
	

�������� 	
� ��
� �

����� 	
� �
�
���� ��
���
�� �� ���������
�	�����

��
��������
��	�����������
� �!�	�"����	� �#$�%�
	��
&	�� �%
�

	���	���	�����'#�����()'#����(*#)�+��
� �

,�
-
��.� �	������	��/��
��	��0��������1�
�	������	���,2�%���
��03��
���������1�

� � �
� �	������	�-.���4�����
 �!/�5��"�� �&��%��� ����2��
- �&�,�

�
 �

�&�����
	�������5!�6���	7�
�
� �
������
�����
.	 �	������	�-.� ,/�/���
�- � 68��!	�
� � %�!���
�� 0�����
�� �
��
�� 9� ��:	��

�	������-1 �/6�2	��-	��0�����
���
��
��9�;��������������
�
��1 ��2�,	�
���
0�������	�� �� ��
��-�������
1 � /26�,	�
�- � ,5�,���
� 0�����
�� �
��
�� 9�
�	�+	���
��
����
-1�����,�&	�
�
/�
������
��<�=��	������	��,2�6���-*	

� �
�

��
�-.� �/�
���� ��
�� >� 9� &� !��� � /--�-����� 5��
��	� � ,���
� !�-
�� �	���--�	����?� ��

%��� � %
��� 	
� %������-� ���� �	�������� �
����
-?� 2� ,��"
-9�
��	� � ���
����
,�	���
�
��������
� �6�8	���
� ����
����,�	���
�
��������
�*�
/�
���� ��
�� <� =� 2� ��	��- � ���
���� %	�-���� �	����	�-� �����
� � 8� �	���� �
,�����+����

��
��%	�
�,	���*�
2� 2	�
- � %
��� 	
� �	�
�����
 � �	���	����� �

��
�@5&�?� �� 5
�� � ���������
�

��
�?�,�2��
- �5
�	��������
����
-��

��
�*�
�

A$*� /,�8������;�&�/!��������
	
���������	����	��������	����	
���������	���� 	!	"����	
��#	
���������	�
	$%&�	%��	$�	!	
���� 	
	

AA*� �/��5���!���������0�;�/�B1���
	
'(���	����	��	�%���	��)�*�*�*�� 	
	

A>*� 5��8/&/�������;�����&������
	
+ 	����*��&	������	��	*(�	�������	�����%*���	!����& 	

���������	�
	���*,	���-�������%)��	!�����%�&,	��	
������	��������*%*���	��	*(�	��%��	��	
*(�	$%��(��	�������	������%*��� 	
	

A<*� ����������
	
&���83�5.��������
������
-�	
�<�/+����()'#��
�
��	�
���
���-����	��
����
�	�������
-���
�������
���������*�
	

AC*� ������������;&������!�&���;��%��,�!8�������������;�&�;���&��
��&����B���
	
��	������*����	���	����*��&	(%�	)���	�������� 	
	

>)*� D���������;&����%��,�!8�����
	
��	.���*����	����	��������	����	*(�	��)���	��	�%**���	��������%��&	��	*(�	%����% 	
	

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



	

	
	

>'*� ��&���������9��/2�&�,&���&���������
	
'(�	
����**��	����	��������	��	��������	��*(	*(�	�*���*�����	�%/��	����������*�	*(%*	
����	 ������*�&	 ������%& 	 	 '(�	 
����**��	 %���	 �0�������	 �*�	 �����	 ��	 ������	 ���	
��������%*���	 ��	 ����������	 *(�	 ����������*	 �������	 *�	 ��*	 ��	 ��%��	 ���	 ���*�%�*�%�	
%��%������*�	����	*(�	���	��	�����*	1234 	
	
'(�	 
%)���*	 $��)��	 5	 $%/��	 
��*�%�*�,	 )�����&	 ��*�����	 *(�	 )����*	 ����*���	 %��	 *(�	
���*�%�*	*���*%)��	%��	���(%�����	*(%*	
%)���*	�����	��������	*(�	�%/��	����������*�	
%*	%	���*���	��	34	"���	1234 	
	
'(�	 �����*%�*	 �����*��,	 !�%��	 �%���	 
������������,	 (��(���(*��	 *(%*	 ����	 ���%*��	
����������*�	(%�	)���	��*%)���(��	*�	��*	��	��%��	���	%��%������*�	����	3	���*��)��	
1234 	 	 '(���	 ����	 ��*�����	 ��	 ����	 ��*%��	 ��	 *(�	 %����%	 �����*	 )�*	 �������6	 !�)���	
��%��#	 ��������	 ��������#	 ��������	 
��%����,	 %��	 ������%�&	 �������� 	 ��	 *��7	 *(�	

����**��	*(����(	*(�	7�&	����*�	��	*(�	�����* 	
	
������	*(�	������	��	��)%*�	*(�	���������	�������%�	����*�	����	��*��6	

•	 8�*(	 ���	 ���*(	 *�	 ��	 *(�	 �������%�	 ������*�	 ���	 *(�	 ���*�%�*�	 ����	 %���%�&	 ��	
��%�� 	

•	 '(�	�����*�*���	��%�����	���������	(%�	��%)���	��%�����	��*(	)������	*�	�������	
���%��*&	�����	� � 	*(�	
���*(��%�	��(��� 	

•	 9���*�����	��	 *(�	�%&���*	���(%�����	:�%�%	32 3;<	 �*	�%�	��%������	 *(%*	 ����	
���	������*�	�%&	)�	�%��	�(���	*(�	���7	�%�	 ���	%��	���%��&	 ����*�����	� � 	 ��	
)�������	��������	�(���	�%��*��%���	�%�	�����%����	%��	��	%	���*��	)%��� 		
��%�*���	�%&���*�,	�(��(	�����	)�	7��*	*�	%	�������,	�����	)�	���	��������&	
���7� 	

•	 '(�	
����**��	��*��	 *(�	 �����	��	 ��*�����	�%�����	)�*	.���*�����	�(�*(��	 *(�	
�����*	��*	��*	���������*	 ���%���%�	�%*%	 *�	��)�*%�*�%*�	 *(�	�%�����	��%���� 	=�%�	
��	 &�%�	 �%��*%�>�������	 �������	 �����	 (%��	 )���	 ������ 	 	 ��	 ��������	 *(�	
�����**��	 ����	 ��������	 *(%*	 (��*����%�	 ��������	 ������	 (%�	 )���	 ����	 %��	
��������	��	*(�	)%�%���	)�*����	�������	%��	�%��*%�,	%��	*�	%	������	������	
����	 *(�	������	��(��� 	 	�������	(%�	)���	������*��	 *�	
%)���*	 ��	%�	�%�����	
�����* 	

•	 '(�	 ���*�%�*	 ����	 %����	 ��������	 *�	 )�	 ��������	 *�	 �*(��	 ���%���%*���� 		

����*����	��	��(%����	�������%���	�%&	����	*�	)�	��*%)���(�� 	

•	 '(�	 !�)���	 ��%��	 ���*�%�*	 �����	 )�	 ���	 32	 &�%��	 ��*(	 ��*����	 *�	 �0*��� 	 	 ��	
�������*%����	��	����	�������%���	�*	�����	)�	�%������� 	

•	 9���*�����	��	������%*���	�(%����	%��	���������	������%*���	*�	�%��	���)���,	�*	
�%�	���������	*(%*	*(��	�����	�����	�����	���%��*&	��	���%�����*	��*(	���������#	
�������*&,	%��	*���	%��	�%���(	�������� 	

•	 '(�	$���*�����	�������	���������	*(%*	 ��	%�����%���	��*(	 *(�	
������?�	��������	
�%7���	���������	�����	*(�	����*�*�*���,	��������	)&	*(�	
��%�	@��������*	��*	
1222,	
%)���*	�����	�%7�	*(�	��������	����������	*(�	���*�%�*� 	

•	 ��������	 ���7���	 ��*(	 *(�	 ������*%�*�	 (%�	 �*�����	 *�	 ������	 *(%*	 *(�	 ���*�%�*	
��������%*����	 ����	 ������* 	 	 '(�	 
������	 ������	 *�	 ������	 *(%*	 *(�	 ��*���	
��������:�<	���������	*(�	��������	*�	*(�	�0���*��	������ 	

•	 '(�	 
����**��	 ����	 ��������	 *(%*	 *(�	 �����*�*���	 ��%�����	 �������	 �%�	 %	
����������	*��������	��%�*���	%��	��������	��%�����	��*(	)������	��*(	*(�	%��	��	
����������	%�*���%*���	����*����	*�	���*	��.�������*� 		

•	 '(���	����	������*�&	*(���	��*��*�%�	)������	��	*(�	!�)���	��%��	������� 	
•	 '(�	��*��*�%�	���	 ���*�%�	�%��*%�	 �����*���*	 ��	(��(�%&	%���*�	(%�	(%�	��	 ����*���	

�����*	��	)������,	��	�%�*	*(��	(%�	)���	����	%�	%	����*���	�����*���*&	*�	�������	
*(�	��*��*�%�	���	�����*���* 	

10



	

•	 8(���	 %	 ���)��	 ��	 )�����*�	 (%�	 )���	 ����*�����	 :���	 �%�%	 32 A<	 %	 )������	
%����%�(	�����	)�	%���*�� 		���	)���	�����	)�	/�����	%�%���*	*(�	��*	��%�����7 	

•	 �*%7�(�����	 ����*	��	����)%�7	(%�	)���	�%�*����	����	*(�	&�%��	%��	(%�	)���	
���	��*�	*(�	��������%*����,	(������,	*(�	���*�%�*�	������	*�	)�	��	����	��*(	*(�	

������?�	�)/��*���� 	

•	 ��	����	��	 *(���	��*��*�%��&	(���(*����	����,	 �*	�%�	������*��	 *(%*	 *���	B	�%���(	
��������	 �(����	 )�	 �����	 �%��&	 �%�����	 ��	 ��%	 %	 ��������%*����	 ��%�,	 ��	 *(�	
�%���	��	������	*(�&	����	����	*�	��������	��	�������	��*(	*(�	���	��������	�%*��	
��	*(�	&�%� 		

•	 �*%��	%*	���7	��	%����*��	)&	*(�	�(%����	����	)�	%�������%*��&	�%�%��� 	
•	 9���*�����	 ��	 *(�	 ���*	 ��	 *(�	 ����������*	 �������	 *(�	 
����**��	 ����	

��������	 *(%*	 %�	 ��*��%*�	 (%�	 )���	 ��������	 *�	 
%)���*	 %�	 �%�*	 ��	 *(�	)����*	
��������%*��� 		�����*	���������	(%�	%���	)���	��������	��	*(�	1234>3C	)����* 	

•	 '(���	�����	)�	��	�������	�����	������*	��*(��	*(�	���*�%�* 		����	*(���	�����	
)�	 ��	 �0�������*&	 *�	 *(�	 ���*�%�*,	 (������,	 %�	 %	 ��������)��	 �����*	 �*	 �����	 )�	
�0���*��	*(%*	*(�	�%/���*&	��	���7	�����	)�	��%���	��*(	*(�	���*�%�*��:�< 	

•	 �*	�%�	%�*����%*��	*(%*	��%��	��%��	%�����%�&	��������	�����	)�	��������	��	%�	%�	
%��	�(��	)%��� 	

•	 9���*�����	��	(��	���*�%�*�	�����	)�	%�������	%��	����*����,	%��	)&	�(�,	*(�	

����**��	 ����	 ��������	 *(%*	 *(�	 
����*	 '�%�	 �����	 )�	 ����*�����	 ���*�%�*�	
%�%���*	 *(�	 �������%���	 ��%�����7 	 	 !��%�*���	 �%&	 )�	 %������ 	 
��������&	
���*�%�*�	�%&	)�	�0*����� 	

	
&���83�5.�������

'*� ��
��	�����

��
�	��
��-��������
��
+	����	������
� �������+��
��'#�2��
�
()'# � �	��
������ 
����
� �	���������� ������
�
��-� �	� �
+���
� ��
� /�
��
�	�������-�	���.�

�1� ������
���
��
���
�����	�� ��
���-�	������ �
�
�-�	
� 
������� 
	��-
����
-� �	�

�-��
��������
�������+��
���
�
��	
�-�����-��--��
�������
��
+	��������
�
�����
�
������
7���+	���
�?�

�1� ��� �
����	�� �	� ��
� ,������ &
���� �	������ � ������
� �
����-� 	
� �	��
-��"
�	��
�� �
E���
�
��-���+���
����������	�-������	�-����
 �	�����
 �
�	���

������
--
����������	�-��
����	��	
���
��	�������+�	+	-��-?�

�1� ,�	���
���
	�����	�����
����
����	��	�����+���-���	�����-����������
��

��������������*
*��������	���������	�-�+��� �	
���
�����
�	
��--�
-���
��
������

���	��	�-��
��	����-��--��������
��
��+�	���
�� ���
�� �����
��
���
��������������
����
�
	����
-
���-��--�	�-�+��	����-����
����
�
��������
������������"
���	��-��
��������+*�

(*� ��
��
+	���
�����
�����

�-�
�
�=���:	��,�	���
�
��- ��
��	�
�*�

	
>(*� ��&����B�&�3��6��;��%��%�������/88��/�����,�8��B���

	
'(�	
����**��	����������	*(�	��������	��	*(�	'%�7	B	�����(	@����	����*��&	������	��	*(�	
�������	 �����%*���	 !����&	 %��	 �(�*(��	 *�	 ���������	 *(�	 �����*	 *�	 *(�	 �0���*���	 ���	
��������%*��� 	
	
'(�	
(%���%�	��	*(�	'%�7	B	�����(	@����,	
���������	!"	8%**�,	������*��	*(�	�����*	%��	
(��(���(*��	*(%*	*(�	
������	�%�	��.�����	��	��������	*�	*(�	
��%����	��*	1233	*�	������	
�*�	(������	%����%*���	�����& 		'(�	@����?�	*%�7	�%�	��*	*�	�����*%7�	%�	��-���*(	������	
)�*	 *�	�(%������	%��	������*	��	�����&	������%��	%�	 *(�&	����	)����(*	 ����%��	)&	%	
�*������	 @����	 ���������	 ��	 ��������	 %��	 �����*����	 ����%�	 
%�������	 :��
�< 	 	 '(�	

11



	

��������	 %��	 ���������%*����	 %������	 ����	 ��*	 ��*	 ��	 *(�	 �����*	 ��	 *(�	 '%�7	 B	 �����(	
@���� 	
	
'(�	
����**��	.���*�����	��	����(*	���*(��	��%�����%*���	��	%	���)��	��	����*�	)�*(	 ��	
*(�	������	�����*	%��	 *(�	%�������	��%�*	�������	�����%*����	!����&	 ���	���������(���,	
�������%��&	 ����������6	 *(�	 ���	 ��	 *(�	 *���	 ���%�	 ������*���	 %��	 (��	 *(��	 %������	 *�	
�������	 ��*����,	 )�*	 �����	 *�,	 *(�	 )����%�&#	 %�	 *(�	 
������	 (%�	 �����*%7��	 %	 /���*	
�������	 �*�%*��&	 ��*(	 �(����(���	 �(&	 *(�	 ���*&	 �����	 �*�%*��&	 (%��?*	 %���	 )���	 %	
/���*	 �*�%*��&#	 *(�	 ���	 ��	 *(�	 *���	 D��%���%)��	 ����������?#	 *(�	 �%*���%��	 ���	 %	 �����	
%���%�	 (����(���	 ������	 ��	 EC;7#	 �(�*(��	 *(�	 ������%��	 *%7�	 ��*�	 %�����*	 %�&	
������%*����	 ����	*(�	8���%��	������	��*	1231	:)������	*%0<#	(��	������	%����*��	)&	
*(�	�������	(������	�����*��	����	)�	%����*��	%��	�(�*(��	����%*�	���*��	 �%�������	(%�	
��%��	��	��%��	*�	�%�%��	%�&	�����%���	���%�� 	
	
�%����	 �%*������	 �*����	 ���%�����	 *(�	 %)���	 ����*�	 *(�	 
����**��	 %�����6	 *(%*	 *(�	

(%���%�	 ��	 *(�	 '%�7	 B	 �����(	 @����	 �%7�	 %	 ���)��	 ��	 �����	 %�������*�	 ���	 *(�	
�������	 ��	 ��%��*&#	 %�����	 ���������%*����	 �	 5	 F	 ��	 *(�	 �����*,	 %��	 %�����	 *(%*	 *(�	
�����*	)�	����%����	*�	*(�	�0���*���	���	��������%*��� 	
	
&���83�5.��
�
����� 0�1�� ��
����������	
� ��
��	�����

��
�����	��-
�� �	� 
�����-
� ��
��
+	���


	��-����--�	�� �	������
�� ����	�-������	������� ��
����������	
� ��
�
��-"� �� ;���-�� ��	�+� �	� ��"
� ���	���� 	
� �	��
��-� ���
� ��� ��
�
�	�����

���������+�		
�
�������	��
���	�-?�

�
� 0�1� -��:
��� �	� �1� ��	�
� ��
� �	�����

� ���

�� ��
� 
������-� ����

�
�	��
�����	�-��	�����
�������
��
+	���	
���
���-"���;���-����	�+�
=� %	�-���� /��	����	�� ,	����� ���� �	� 
	������ ��
� �
+	��� �	� ��
�
�7
�����
�
	���	�-��
����	�?�

�
� 0�1� ��
��7
�����
F-��
-+	�-
��	���
�&
��
�������������������	��+�����
�

�
+	��
�� �	� ��
� 
��-�� ��������
� �

����� 	
� ��
� �	�����

� �
�
�� ��
�
�7
�����
���-��++�	�
����-��
-+	�-
*�

	
	

>#*� ����������6�&4�,&��&/������
	
'(�	
����**��	����������	�*�	���7	�����%��� 	
	
'(�	 G���	 
(%���%�	 �����*��	 *(%*	 *(�	 '%�7	 B	 �����(	 @����	 �����*	 ����������	 *(�	

������*&	 ����%�*���*���	
��&	:
�
<,	���	 *�	(%��	)���	��)��**��	 *�	 *(��	���*���,	(%�	
)���	 *�����%���&	 ��*(��%��	 �������	 ��%�����%*���	 ��	 %	 ���)��	 ��	 ������	 �%����	 )&	 *(�	
������ 	 	 �(�	 ���*(��	 �����*��	 *(%*	 ��%�����%*���	 �%�	 �*���	 %�%�*��	 ����	 *(�	 �0���*���	
����������	 %	 �����)��	 �����%��	 *�	 *(�	 
�
	 *���*%)�� 	 	 '(�	 
(%���%�	 ������*��	 *(%*	
������	*(�	������	����	%��������	��������%*���	�(����	)�	�����	*�	��)��**���	*(�	�����*	
%�	 ��%�*��	 *�	 *(�	 "���	 ���*��� 	 	 '(�	 $���*�����	 �������	 �����*��	 *(%*	 %	 ���*���	 �%�	
��%����	*�	��%���&	%	�%&	����%�� 	
	
'(�	
(%���%�	������*��	*(%*	��	*(�	�����*�	��	*(�	
��%�	����������*	��%�����7	:
��<	
������*%*����	����	%�%��%)��	�%�����	 *(%�	��%����	:3+	"���<	*(��	%�	�0*�%	���*���	�%&	
)�	(���	*�	��������	*(�	��������� 	
	
'(�	 
(%���%�	 ���*(��	 ������*��	 *(%*	 ��*(	 �����%���	 ���(%���	 )����	 ��%���	 ��	
�������������	 ��������	 (�	 �%�	 ������	 ��������%*���	 *�	 ��.���*���	 %�	 %��	 ���)��	
�����%�,	 �����)�&	 �%����*%*��	 )&	 ����*��&,	 ��������	 *(�	 ������%*����	 %��	 �%���	 ��	
�������������	������	%��	��*(���	��	����*����� 		

12



	

	
'(�	G���	
(%���%�	 �����*��	 *(%*	 %	)�������	�%���	�%�	)����	����%���	����������	 *(�	
�%�*�	 ���*�%�* 	 	 '(�	 ��*��*���	 ��	 *(�	 �%���	 �%�	 *�	 �������	 �����**��	 ���)���	 ��*(	
���������*	)%�7������	*�	��%)��	*(��	*�	����*�����	*(�	�%�*�	�����*	���	*�	��	*�	
%)���*	
��	���*��)�� 			
	
'(�	 G���	 
(%���%�	 ������*��	 *(%*	 *(�	 ��%�*(	 ��	 ���������(���	 �����*	 �����	 )�	
������%*��	 *�	 ���)��� 	 	 �(�	 �����������	 *(%*	 ���)���	 �*��&	 *(�	 �������*	 ��*(	 %	
����	*�	�����*���	%��%�	��	*(����	���	��*���	����*��& 	
	
�*	 �%�	 ��*��	 *(%*	 ������*�	 �%��	 %*	 ����*	 %��	 @�����%���	 
����**��	 (%�	 ��������	
*(���	����	������	���%�����	��������%*���� 		'(�	
(%���%�	������*��	*(���	�%&	)�	%	
������	 *(���	 %��	 �����	 )�	 �����*��%*���	 �(�*(��	 %	 ����*��&	 ������	 �(����	 )�	
�����*%7�� 	
	
'(�	G���	
(%���%�	�����*��	 *(%*	�(�	(%�	��*	��������	 *�	 �����*��%*�	%	�����)��	������	
��*�	*(�	����*%�	�*�%*��& 		��	%	�����*	%	�������	�*%*����*	�%�	)����	��%�*�� 	
	
&���83�5.��������
�����
���+	-���	���
����������
��	�"�+�	�����
��
��	�
�*�
	

'(�	���*���	�����	%*	C C4	��	 �%/�&�/�	

13



14



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Yvonne Coleman, Planning Obligations Manager on Tel: (01432) 383083 

 

 

MEETING:  GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 18 JUNE 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK PROCESS 

REPORT BY:  ANDREW ASHCROFT - ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 
ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENT & CULTURAL 
SERVICES 

1. Classification 

Open. 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

4. Purpose 

To outline the Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft) consultation process and 
set out the responses received in response to the consultation undertaken between  
4 March and 22 April 2013. This report does not detail the content of the Core Strategy 
itself. 

5. Recommendation 

 THAT: 

(a) The content of the report be noted. 

6. Key Points Summary 

• At the General Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 11 February 2013 the 
Cabinet Member Environment, Housing and Planning offered to update the 
Committee on the consultation process undertaken and representations received to 
the consultation on the Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft). 

• Consultation and engagement is a key element in the preparation of the Development 
Plan Documents. Since work began on the preparation of the Core Strategy in 2007 
there have been a series of on-going consultations across the county which have 
helped to inform the development of the Plan. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

15



 
 
 

• The requirements for Development Plan Document consultation are set out in 
Regulations 18 and 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2012. 

• The regulations are supported by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
which sets out government policy on plan preparation, including community 
engagement. 

• During the period of preparing the Herefordshire Local Plan - Core Strategy there 
have been seven periods of consultation as follows: 

Ø Identifying the issues, May 2007; 
Ø Key Issues Consultation, September – October 2007; 
Ø Developing Options, June – August 2008; 
Ø Place Shaping, January – March 2010; 
Ø Preferred Options, July – November 2010; 
Ø Revised Preferred Option, October – November 2011; 
Ø Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft), March – April 2013. 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no alternatives to undertaking consultation upon statutory Development Plan 
Documents. Consultation is a fundamental element of the preparation of such documents 
enshrined in the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2012. 

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 To provide details of the consultation process. 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 Consultation and engagement is a key element in the preparation of Development Plan 
Documents, such as Herefordshire Local Plan - Core Strategy (draft). The importance of 
consultation and engagement with stakeholders and local people in helping to inform plans 
for the county has been at the heart of the Plan’s preparation. 

9.2 This report details the programme of consultation that has been undertaken during the Plan 
preparation and the responses received to the final consultation. Officers will be 
recommending revisions to the Plan as a result of the consultation which will be detailed in 
the report presented to Cabinet on 4 July 2013 and Council on 19 July 2013 for members 
to make a decision. Officers are working on the revisions and therefore they are not 
available for this report. 

10. Key Considerations 

Planning Regulations 

10.1 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2012 (as amended), sets out the requirements for a Local Planning Authority (LPA) to 
enable public participation in the plan making process. The process is divided into two main 

16



 
 
 

elements; the first (Regulation 18) covers the plan preparation process up until the approval 
of a draft plan by Full Council whilst the second regulation (Regulation 19) deals with the 
process after a draft plan is approved. 

10.2  Regulation 18 sets out the requirements for LPAs to consult the specific and general 
consultation bodies. They must also consider whether or not it is appropriate to invite 
representations from local residents and local businesses. The LPA must consider any 
representations received by them.  

10.3  Regulation 19 deals with the process in respect of representations upon a final draft plan. 
This will take place after Full Council approval. The Regulations specify that a single period 
of six weeks or more, in which representations on the Plan can be made, is necessary at 
this time. The LPA have the discretion to specify a period of more than six weeks if they 
feel more time is needed - giving them more flexibility. If any representations are submitted 
during this period the Secretary of State will consider them before his independent 
examination. As with the previous stage Regulation 19 requires: 

a) consultation with specific and general consultation bodies, 

b) the publication of the documents on the website as well as making copies available 
at offices and other appropriate locations in the area, and 

c) giving notice by local advertisement of the publication of the plan. 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

10.4  National Planning Policy Framework provides the following guidance with regards to plan 
preparation at paragraph 155: 

Early and meaningful engagement and collaboration with neighbourhoods, local 
organisations and businesses is essential. A wide section of the community should be 
proactively engaged, so that Local Plans, as far as possible, reflect a collective vision and a 
set of agreed priorities for the sustainable development of the area, including those 
contained in any neighbourhood plans that have been made. 

Herefordshire Statement of Community Involvement 

10.5  Herefordshire Council produced a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) which was 
adopted in March 2007. This sets out how and when the local community can become 
involved in the preparation of the Local Development Documents and in the consideration 
of planning applications.  

10.6 The Council must comply with its adopted SCI when preparing its Local Development 
Framework documents and this compliance will be tested when these are independently 
examined. The Herefordshire Statement of Community Involvement itself was adopted 
following a formal examination by the Planning Inspectorate. 

10.7 The Statement of Community Involvement identifies a range of consultation methods that 
will effectively engage the public, and what methods would be the most appropriate to the 
policy area being prepared and its stage of preparation. 

10.8  The SCI was produced to accord with the 2004 Local Development Regulations which were 
superseded by new regulations in 2012. Under the 2004 regulations a three stage 
consultation process existed which needed to be complied with. The first two of these 

17



 
 
 

stages being undertaken during the plan preparation stages (before Council approval of a 
draft plan), with the third final stage undertaken after Council approval. These stages are 
summarised as follows: 

a) Firstly the Local Planning Authority had to consult specific and general consultation 
bodies (but not the public) and take into account their views when preparing their 
plan; 

b) Secondly once the proposed plan had been prepared it had to be made available for 
public inspection for a period of six weeks for any public representations. Public 
representations then had to be considered; 

c) Once all of the public representations had been considered the Plan could then be 
submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination. The Plan would 
then be published for a further period of six weeks in which additional 
representations would be allowed. 

10.9  The SCI anticipated specific consultation at issues and options stage and preferred options 
during the plan preparation process. It then anticipated consultation following Council 
approval and submission to the Secretary of State. This was in accordance with the 2004 
Regulations rather than the simplified two stage procedure now set out in the amended 
2012 regulations, as detailed in the ‘Planning Regulations’ section of this report. 

10.10 However, in preparing the Herefordshire Local Plan - Core Strategy (draft) the Council have 
recognised the need for on-going consultation and to-date there have been seven distinct 
consultation exercises held since 2007. 

10.11 The majority of the consultations have been county wide consultation exercises although a 
more targeted approach was taken for the preferred options stage. The consultation stages 
undertaken since 2007 are as follows; 

• Identifying the issues, May 2007; 
• Key Issues Consultation, September – October 2007; 
• Developing Options, June – August 2008; 
• Place Shaping, January – March 2010; 
• Preferred Options, July – November 2010; 
• Revised Preferred Option, September – November 2011; 
• Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft), March – April 2013. 

10.12  Full details of the consultation process undertaken from 2007 – 2011 can be found at 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/core-
strategy/. A summary of these consultations can also be found at Appendix A of this report.  

10.13  This report provides a summary of the latest consultation undertaken for the Herefordshire 
Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft), March – April 2013 and a summary of the online 
responses received. The written responses to the latest consultation, Draft Core Strategy 
Survey, can also be found at https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-
control/planning-policy/core-strategy; a hard copy of this document will be available for 
inspection by Councillors in the Members’ Room at Brockington and at the meeting. These 
responses are presently being analysed and a full response to them will be provided to 
Cabinet on 4 July and Council on 19 July 2013. 

 

18



 
 
 

Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft) (4 March 2013 – 22 April 2013) 

10.14  Taking into account the representations received to the revised preferred options 
consultation and having completed further work to support the evidence base, Cabinet 
agreed on 27 February 2013 to the Council carrying out a seven week consultation on the 
whole Plan, the Sustainability Appraisal and the Habitats Regulation Assessment. The 
consultation ran from 4 March to 22 April 2013. The following methods of consultation were 
used:  

• Questionnaire – All parish councils, were sent copies of the questionnaire, a hard 
copy of the Core Strategy and an accompanying letter which explained how to 
access the full documentation and make representations to the consultation. They 
also received a powerpoint presentation outlining the content of the Core Strategy. 
Interest groups and individuals, contained within the LDF database, were sent 
copies of the questionnaire and an accompanying letter which explained how to 
access the full documentation and make representation to the consultation. 
Subsequent requests for hard copies of the Core Strategy, compact discs of the 
Plan or questionnaires were supplied where requested. 

• Statutory Consultees – Prior to the consultation commencing a series of 1-2-1 
briefings were held with a number of the statutory consultees to ensure that the 
Core Strategy dovetailed with their plans for future infrastructure provision. All 
statutory consultees, were sent copies of the questionnaire, a hard copy or compact 
disc of the Core Strategy and an accompanying letter which explained how to 
access the full documentation and make representations to the consultation. The 
Environment Agency, Natural England, English Heritage, Highways Agency and 
Countryside Council for Wales were consulted directly upon the Sustainability 
Appraisal and Habitat Regulations Assessment as required by the regulations.  

• Ward Members – Prior to the consultation commencing 9 briefing sessions were 
held with members from Bromyard, Hereford City, Kington, Ledbury, Leominster, 
Ross-on-Wye and all rural members to share with them the proposed content of the 
Plan and enable them to influence the emerging policies pertaining to their relevant 
area.  Following these meetings an all member briefing session was held on  
7 December 2012. A further series of member briefings have been arranged on  
3 June, 7 June and 14 June to provide a summary of the consultations received for 
their respective areas and discuss the key issues emerging from the consultation 
and any revisions to the policies that may arise.  

• Ward Member Briefing Pack - Prior to the consultation commencing on 4 March 
member briefing sessions were held on 28 February and 1 March 2013. Officers 
were present at these sessions to provide members on a 1-2-1 basis with an 
overview of the Plan and to provide a briefing pack containing a hard copy of the 
Core Strategy, a copy of the questionnaire, a laminated copy of the proposals map, 
a chart showing the demographics of the county and a summary of the proposals for 
Hereford City, the market towns and the general policies. In addition, members were 
provided with a powerpoint presentation which outlined the content of the Plan to 
deliver to their constituents. This was all provided to empower members and enable 
them to actively engage with their constituents on the content of the Plan and 
encourage representations. Where members requested additional copies of the 
Core Strategy, questionnaires or to use the Council exhibition this was facilitated. 

• Parish Council Events – All parish councils were invited by letter to attend a 
consultation drop in session on 6 March, 20 March and 15 April 2013 between  

19



 
 
 

16.00 – 20.00pm. Officers were present to take attendees though the Plan on a 1-2-
1 basis if required. There was also an exhibition outlining the content of the Plan and 
a powerpoint presentation. These sessions were also available for members to 
attend.  

• Public Roadshows – Eight roadshows took place in High Town, Hereford, Bromyard, 
Kington, Ledbury, Leominster, Ross-on-Wye, Peterchurch in the rural west and 
Wigmore in the rural north. Members of the public could attend any of these 
sessions. Officers were available to explain the Plan on a 1-2-1 basis. People were 
able to view the exhibition, pick up hard copies or CD of the Core Strategy and 
questionnaire.  

• Members of Parliament – A 1-2-1 briefing session was held with Bill Wiggin MP on  
8 February 2013 and with Jesse Norman MP on 1 March 2013. Officers provided a 
presentation on the proposed content of the Core Strategy and invited 
representations to the content. 

• Business engagement – A meeting was held with Neil Kerr - Chair of Herefordshire 
Business Board and Bill Jackson - on 13 March 2013 to brief them on the content of 
the Core Strategy. Hereford & Worcester Chamber of Commerce held a breakfast 
business meeting on Wednesday 17 April 2013 for the top 20 businesses in 
Herefordshire. Officers provided a presentation on key elements of the Core 
Strategy followed by 3 facilitated workshop sessions regarding growth, 
transportation and the Community Infrastructure Levy. In addition an Officer 
provided a presentation to the Hereford Business Board on 16 April 2013.  

• Neighbouring Authorities – A meeting was held on 26 November 2012 with 
representatives of some of the neighbouring authorities to discuss whether there 
were any cross border policy areas that should be considered in the preparation of 
the Plan.  

• Youth Event – In order to engage with the 16-25 year olds across the county, an 
event was held at Hereford Sixth Form College and the Herefordshire College of 
Technology on 26 March. Officers were available to explain the Plan, provide 
questionnaires and encourage representations to be made. 

• Libraries and Information Centres – Hard copies of the Core Strategy, compact 
discs, copies of the questionnaire, Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulations 
Assessment were distributed to all the libraries, including the community libraries, 
within the county and the Council’s Information centres. Public displays of the 
information also appeared on the exterior of Hereford Library and the Customer 
Information Centre at Franklin House, Hereford. In addition all Customer Service 
Officers received a briefing pack on the Core Strategy to enable them to engage 
with members of the public attending the Customer Information Centres or calling 
the Council switchboard. 

• Website – Prior to the consultation commencing a new website was established 
which contained access to all the evidence base supporting the Core Strategy 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/local-
plan-evidence-base/ The questionnaire was available electronically and could also 
be completed through the Council’s online ‘Have your say’ consultation pages and 
was available to download from Herefordshire Council’s website. 

20



 
 
 

• Weekly Briefing Note – Weekly briefing notes outlining how work was progressing 
on the Core Strategy and how the consultation was progressing were produced and 
sent to all ward members and published on the Council website 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/core-
strategy/local-plan-core-strategy-weekly-briefing-notes/ These updates have 
continued. 

• Posters – Posters were produced to advertise the roadshow events, and how to 
make representations to the consultation. These were distributed to each of the 
parish / town councils for them to place on their parish notice boards.  

• Advert – A poster advert was produced for the Hereford Times, this helped to 
advertise the roadshows. A similar advert appeared in the Primary Times, which is a 
free ‘What’s on guide’ distributed through primary schools to 16,000 Herefordshire 
families.  

• Press Notices – An official public notice of the consultation appeared in the local 
papers (Hereford Times, Hereford Journal, Ross Gazette, Malvern Gazette,  
Mid-Wales Journal) on 25 February 2013. A further public notice was published on  
1 April 2013 in the Hereford Times and Hereford Journal advertising a meeting to be 
held on 15 April 2013. 

• Radio Interview – The Cabinet Member Environment, Housing and Planning was 
interviewed by BBC Hereford and Worcester on 27 February and 19 April 2013 
where he stressed the importance of the Core Strategy for the whole county and 
encouraged representations to be made to the consultation. 

• Core Strategy Video – A video was produced by the Cabinet Member Environment, 
Housing and Planning and made available on the Council website outlining the 
importance of the Core Strategy to the whole county and encouraging 
representations to be made to the consultation. 

• Encore – An article appeared in the March edition of Encore advising all staff of the 
consultation and encouraging representations to be made.  

• Press Releases – A press release was produced on 8 March 2013 entitled ‘How the 
County develops’ which encouraged people to respond to the consultation. A further 
press release was produced on 15 April 2013 entitled ‘Still time to provide your 
views on the Core Strategy’. A press release was also provided to all parish / town 
councils to use it as an article within their parish magazines or publications. 

• Social Media – Twitter and Facebook were used to promote the content of the Plan 
and encourage representations to be made to the consultation. 

• Incoming enquiries – Officers have responded to telephone calls and emails 
regarding the consultation or content of the Core Strategy throughout the 
consultation process.  

Online representations received to the Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy 
(draft) consultation 

10.15 In the following tables and charts, all the percentages are calculated as a proportion of the 
total number of responses to each question unless otherwise stated. It is important to note 
that in the case of some questions large numbers of respondents did not answer all of the 

21



 
 
 

questions.  As would be expected many only answered those questions pertaining to their 
local area or subject of interest.  Respondents also provided their comments in the form of 
emails or letters and did not complete the questionnaire.   

10.16  Some interest groups created alternative versions of the questionnaire for their own 
purposes and asked residents to complete and submit their version.  The comments from 
these questionnaires were included amongst the responses but the multiple choice 
answers were not (as the questions being asked differed so the answers were not 
comparable). There were also a number of duplicate standard responses received.  

10.17 The content of letters and emails in response to the consultation were matched by the 
Forward Planning team to relevant questions in the questionnaire and input under these 
question numbers. 

Results 
 
There were 1,428 responses to the survey as follows: 
 

 No. 
Total online responses 322 
Total paper responses 1106 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
The Spatial Strategy Section (pages 27 to 64) 
 
1.a What is your opinion regarding policy SS1: Sustainable Development? (page no. 28) 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 107 24% 
Partly agree 97 22% 
Disagree 192 44% 
No opinion 41 9% 
Total responses 437 100% 
Not answered 991 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 271 comments made. 

24%

22%
44%

9%

SS1:  Sustainable Development

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

22



 
 
 

 

2.a What is your opinion regarding policy SS2: Housing Distribution? (page no. 38) 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 70 16% 
Partly agree 93 21% 
Disagree 247 57% 
No opinion 27 6% 
Total responses 437 100% 
Not answered 991 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 613 comments made. 
 
3.a What is your opinion regarding policy SS3: Release of housing land? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 89 21% 
Partly agree 80 19% 
Disagree 215 51% 
No opinion 37 9% 
Total responses 421 100% 
Not answered 1007 
Total survey respondents 1428 

16%

21%

57%

6%

SS2:  Housing Distribution

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

21%

19%
51%

9%

SS3:  Release of housing land

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

23



 
 
 

3.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 266 comments made. 
 
4.a What is your opinion regarding policy SS4: Movement and transportation? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 87 20% 
Partly agree 83 20% 
Disagree 223 52% 
No opinion 32 8% 
Total responses 425 100% 
Not answered 1003 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 304 comments made. 
 
5.a What is your opinion regarding policy SS5: Employment provision? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 128 31% 
Partly agree 96 23% 
Disagree 144 35% 
No opinion 43 10% 
Total responses 411 100% 
Not answered 1017 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 

20%

20%
52%

8%

SS4:  Movement and transportation

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

24



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 238 comments made. 

 
6.a What is your opinion regarding policy SS6: Climate change? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 135 32% 
Partly agree 82 20% 
Disagree 150 36% 
No opinion 49 12% 
Total responses 416 100% 
Not answered 1012 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 247 comments made. 
 

32%

20%

36%

12%

SS6: Climate change

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

31%

23%

35%

10%

SS5:  Employment provision

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

25



 
 
 

Place Shaping Policies Section 
 
Hereford 
 
7.a What is your opinion regarding policy HD1: City Centre? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 90 23% 
Partly agree 67 17% 
Disagree 135 35% 
No opinion 92 24% 
Total responses 384 100% 
Not answered 1044 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 179 comments made. 
 
8.a What is your opinion regarding policy HD2: Movement? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 54 14% 
Partly agree 74 19% 
Disagree 203 51% 
No opinion 64 16% 
Total responses 395 100% 
Not answered 1033 
Total survey respondents 1428 

23%

17%

35%

24%

HD1:  City Centre

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

26



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 348 comments made. 
 
9.a What is your opinion regarding policy HD3: Northern urban expansion? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 64 16% 
Partly agree 50 13% 
Disagree 180 46% 
No opinion 94 24% 
Total responses 388 100% 
Not answered 1040 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 181 comments made. 
 
 
 
 
 

16%

13%

46%

24%

HD3:  Northern urban expansion

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

14%

19%

51%

16%

HD2:  Movement

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

27



 
 
 

10.a What is your opinion regarding policy HD4: Western urban expansion? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 64 17% 
Partly agree 52 14% 
Disagree 172 46% 
No opinion 87 23% 
Total responses 375 100% 
Not answered 1053 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 174 comments made. 
 
11.a What is your opinion regarding policy HD5: Southern urban expansion? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 110 29% 
Partly agree 59 16% 
Disagree 100 27% 
No opinion 106 28% 
Total responses 375 100% 
Not answered 1053 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29%

16%
27%

28%

HD5:  Southern urban expansion

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

17%

14%

46%

23%

HD4:  Western urban expansion

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

28



 
 
 

11.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 146 comments made. 

 
12.a What is your opinion regarding policy HD6: Hereford employment provision? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 122 33% 
Partly agree 58 16% 
Disagree 103 28% 
No opinion 83 23% 
Total responses 366 100% 
Not answered 1062 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 148 comments made. 
 
Bromyard 
 
13.a What is your opinion regarding policy BY1: Development in Bromyard? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 58 15% 
Partly agree 26 7% 
Disagree 89 23% 
No opinion 207 54% 
Total responses 380 100% 
Not answered 1048 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 

33%

16%
28%

23%

HD6:  Hereford employment provision

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

29



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 118 comments made. 
 
14.a What is your opinion regarding policy BY2: Land at Hardwick Bank and south of the A44 
Leominster Road? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 45 10% 
Partly agree 20 5% 
Disagree 162 36% 
No opinion 217 49% 
Total responses 444 100% 
Not answered 984 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 184 comments made. 
 

10% 5%

36%

49%

BY2:  Land at Hardwick Bank and south of the 
A44 Leominster Road

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

15%

7%

23%

54%

BY1:  Development in Bromyard

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

30



 
 
 

Kington 
 
15.a What is your opinion regarding policy KG1: Development in Kington? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 43 13% 
Partly agree 21 6% 
Disagree 28 9% 
No opinion 234 72% 
Total responses 326 100% 
Not answered 1102 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 51 comments made. 
 
Ledbury 
 
16.a What is your opinion regarding policy LB1: Development in Ledbury? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 42 10% 
Partly agree 46 11% 
Disagree 120 30% 
No opinion 193 48% 
Total responses 401 100% 
Not answered 1027 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13%

6%

9%

72%

KG1:  Development in Kington

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

31



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
16.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 174 comments made. 
 
17.a What is your opinion regarding policy LB2: Land north of the viaduct? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 40 10% 
Partly agree 33 8% 
Disagree 133 33% 
No opinion 193 48% 
Total responses 399 100% 
Not answered 1029 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 164 comments made. 
 

10%

8%

33%

48%

LB2:  Land north of the viaduct

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

10%

11%

30%

48%

LB1:  Development in Ledbury

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

32



 
 
 

Leominster 
 
18.a What is your opinion regarding policy LO1: Development in Leominster? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 40 11% 
Partly agree 31 9% 
Disagree 93 26% 
No opinion 197 55% 
Total responses 361 100% 
Not answered 1067 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 531 comments made. 
 
19.a What is your opinion regarding policy LO2: Leominster urban expansion? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 40 11% 
Partly agree 28 8% 
Disagree 85 24% 
No opinion 196 56% 
Total responses 349 100% 
Not answered 1079 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11%

8%

24%
56%

LO2:  Leominster urban expansion

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

11%

9%

26%
55%

LO1:  Development in Leominster

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

33



 
 
 

19.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 474 comments made. 
 
Ross-on-Wye 
 
20.a What is your opinion regarding policy RW1: Development in Ross-on-Wye? 
 

No. % 
Agree 52 16% 
Partly agree 20 6% 
Disagree 34 10% 
No opinion 221 68% 
Total responses 327 100% 
Not answered 1101 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
20.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 63 comments made. 
 
21.a What is your opinion regarding policy RW2: Land at Hildersley? 
 

No. % 
Agree 40 13% 
Partly agree 14 4% 
Disagree 28 9% 
No opinion 234 74% 
Total responses 316 100% 
Not answered 1112 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 

16%

6%

10%

68%

RW1:  Development in Ross-on-Wye

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

34



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 44 comments made. 
 
22.a What is your opinion regarding policy RA1: Rural housing strategy? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 97 25% 
Partly agree 79 20% 
Disagree 127 33% 
No opinion 85 22% 
Total responses 388 100% 
Not answered 1040 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 243 comments made. 
 

25%

20%
33%

22%

RA1:  Rural housing strategy

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

13% 4%

9%

74%

RW2:  Land at Hildersley

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

35



 
 
 

23.a What is your opinion regarding policy RA2: Herefordshire’s villages? 
 

No. % 
Agree 117 31% 
Partly agree 94 25% 
Disagree 89 23% 
No opinion 83 22% 
Total responses 383 100% 
Not answered 1045 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
23.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 216 comments made. 
 
 
24.a What is your opinion regarding policy RA3: Herefordshire’s countryside? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 137 36% 
Partly agree 79 21% 
Disagree 78 21% 
No opinion 82 22% 
Total responses 376 100% 
Not answered 1052 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36%

21%

21%

22%

RA3:  Herefordshire countryside

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

31%

25%

23%

22%

RA2:  Herefordshire villages

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

36



 
 
 

24.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 135 comments made. 
 
25.a What is your opinion regarding policy RA4: Agricultural, forestry and rural enterprise 
dwellings? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 163 44% 
Partly agree 76 20% 
Disagree 32 9% 
No opinion 101 27% 
Total responses 372 100% 
Not answered 1056 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
25.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 92 comments made. 
 
26.a What is your opinion regarding policy RA5: Re-use of rural buildings? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 180 48% 
Partly agree 69 19% 
Disagree 25 7% 
No opinion 98 26% 
Total responses 372 100% 
Not answered 1056 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 

44%

20%

9%

27%

RA4:  Agriculture, forestry and rural enterprise 
dwellings

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

37



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 92 comments made. 
 
27.a What is your opinion regarding policy RA6: Rural economy? 
 

 
No. % 

Agree 176 48% 
Partly agree 74 20% 
Disagree 33 9% 
No opinion 86 23% 
Total responses 369 100% 
Not answered 1059 
Total survey respondents 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
27.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 109 comments made. 
 

48%

20%

9%

23%

RA6:  Rural economy

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

48%

19%

7%

26%

RA5:  Re-use of rural buildings

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

38



 
 
 

General Policies Section 
 
 
28. Housing policies 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
H1 121 30% 79 20% 138 34% 67 17% 405 1023 1428 
H2 128 35% 66 18% 97 27% 75 20% 366 1062 1428 
H3 181 49% 60 16% 60 16% 65 18% 366 1062 1428 
H4 116 32% 47 13% 101 27% 104 28% 368 1060 1428 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
28.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 235 comments made. 
 
Social and community facilities 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
H1 175 50% 55 16% 38 11% 81 23% 349 1079 1428 
 
 
 
 
 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

H1

H2

H3

H4

No. of responses

Housing policies

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

39



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
29.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 71 comments made. 
 
Open space, sport and recreation 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
OS1 189 54% 52 15% 38 11% 68 20% 347 1081 1428 
OS2 167 50% 46 14% 47 14% 76 23% 336 1092 1428 
OS3 143 42% 57 17% 61 18% 80 23% 341 1087 1428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 107 comments made. 
 

50%

16%

11%

23%

Social and community facilities

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

OS1

OS2

OS3

No of responses

Open space, sport and recreation

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

40



 
 
 

Traffic management 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
MT1 133 37% 61 17% 106 30% 59 16% 359 1069 1428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 155 comments made. 
 
Employment policies, tourism and retail 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
E1 143 41% 55 16% 58 17% 90 26% 346 1082 1428 
E2 142 42% 57 17% 61 18% 82 24% 342 1086 1428 
E3 168 50% 62 18% 29 9% 78 23% 337 1091 1428 
E4 164 47% 57 16% 43 12% 83 24% 347 1081 1428 
E5 157 47% 54 16% 37 11% 88 26% 336 1092 1428 
E6 152 46% 54 16% 37 11% 91 27% 334 1094 1428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37%

17%

30%

16%

Traffic management

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

41



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
32.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 178 comments made. 
 
Local distinctiveness 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
LD1 187 55% 55 16% 31 9% 69 20% 342 1086 1428 
LD2 194 57% 50 15% 30 9% 66 19% 340 1088 1428 
LD3 192 57% 49 14% 30 9% 67 20% 338 1090 1428 
LD4 191 57% 47 14% 31 9% 67 20% 336 1092 1428 
LD5 192 58% 43 13% 32 10% 65 20% 332 1096 1428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

E1

E2

E3

E4

E5

E6

No of responses

Employment policies, tourism and retail

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

LD1

LD2

LD3

LD4

LD5

No of responses

Local distinctiveness

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

42



 
 
 

33.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 125 comments made. 
 
Sustainable design 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
SD1 186 55% 55 16% 31 9% 66 20% 338 1090 1428 
SD2 175 53% 60 18% 31 9% 66 20% 332 1096 1428 
SD3 175 53% 54 16% 38 11% 65 20% 332 1096 1428 
SD4 174 52% 50 15% 39 12% 69 21% 332 1096 1428 
 
 

34.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 177 comments made. 
 
Natural resources: minerals 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
M1 129 41% 30 9% 24 8% 135 42% 318 1110 1428 
M2 86 28% 29 9% 22 7% 171 56% 308 1120 1428 
M3 115 36% 36 11% 28 9% 138 44% 317 1111 1428 
M4 127 41% 24 8% 27 9% 135 43% 313 1115 1428 
M5 117 38% 26 8% 22 7% 146 47% 311 1117 1428 
M6 132 42% 23 7% 27 9% 132 42% 314 1114 1428 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

SD1

SD2

SD3

SD4

No of responses

Sustainable design

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

43



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
35.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 42 comments made. 
 
Waste 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
W1 128 40% 33 10% 48 15% 109 34% 318 1110 1428 
W2 141 44% 40 13% 29 9% 108 34% 318 1110 1428 
W3 142 45% 32 10% 22 7% 121 38% 317 1111 1428 
W4 154 49% 30 9% 23 7% 109 34% 316 1112 1428 
W5 151 47% 32 10% 29 9% 106 33% 318 1110 1428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

M1

M2

M3

M4

M5

M6

No of responses

Natural Resources:  Minerals

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

W1

W2

W3

W4

W5

No of responses

Waste

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion

44



 
 
 

36.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 76 comments made. 
 
Infrastructure delivery 
 

Agree Partly agree Disagree No opinion Total 
resp. 

Not 
ans. 

Total 
survey 
resp. 

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. No. No. 
W1 81 24% 49 15% 136 41% 69 21% 335 1093 1428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
37.b Please provide any comments you wish to make in support of your answers above. 
 
There were 205 comments made. 
 
38. Is there anything else you would like to say about the Core Strategy? 
 
There were 426 comments made. 
 

11. Community Impact 

11.1  The principal aim of the Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy (draft) is to set out the 
vision and objectives for the county and establish a policy framework necessary to deliver 
the vision to 2031. This will ensure that there are sufficient homes provided for all members 
of the community, improved employment opportunities and growth, sufficient retail 
provision, improved infrastructure across the county and protection of the open countryside 
and open spaces and provision of green infrastructure. 

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 The Equality Impact Assessment ensures that there is no potential for discrimination and 
that all appropriate opportunities have been undertaken to advance equality and foster 
good relations. The Core Strategy and questionnaire was available in alternative formats if 
requested.  

24%

15%

41%

21%

Infrastructure delivery

Agree

Partly agree

Disagree

No opinion

45



 
 
 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 There was a budget of £16,500 to complete the consultation process. The process was 
completed within budget. 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 As set out in this report the consultation exercise must comply with Regulation 18 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2012. The consultation exercise is compliant with these regulations. 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2012 and the National Planning Policy Framework, highlight the need for public 
consultation particularly where new evidence or emerging policy has significantly changed. 
One of the tests of soundness is the consultation process itself. 

16. Consultees 

16.1  The nature of the process has involved extensive countywide engagement with local 
people, interest groups and statutory agencies during the consultation period. 

17. Appendices 

17.1 Appendix A - Detailed schedule of consultation undertaken since 2007. 

17.2 As referred to in paragraph 10.13, the written responses to the latest consultation, Draft 
Core Strategy Survey, can be found at https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-
building-control/planning-policy/core-strategy. 

18. Background Papers 

18.1 None. 

46



 

 

Appendix A - Detailed schedule of consultation undertaken since 2007 

 

Appendix A - Detailed schedule of consultation undertaken since 2007 

 

Identifying the Issues (from May 2007) 
 
1.0 At the earliest stage in the plan making process and in order to identify the key issues the 

Council undertook an open-ended consultation from May 2007. A leaflet was prepared 
which highlighted the issues identified within the Community Strategy, invited comments 
upon these and requested additional issues be identified. 

 
1.1  Publicity undertaken at this time was directed at increasing the awareness of this leaflet 

and generally raising knowledge of the Local Development Framework and Core Strategy 
commencement. This was in the form of: 

 
• Presentations to existing stakeholder forums and informal meetings, for example: 

Herefordshire Partnership, Economic Development, Visit Herefordshire Group; 
 

• Herefordshire Matters Article (May 2007); 
 

• A letter was distributed to everyone on the Adopted Statement of Community 
Involvement database which introduced the Core Strategy. The letter also contained 
the Core Strategy leaflet and advised of a later consultation to be undertaken in 
September 2007; 
 

• Early discussions were undertaken with Government Office for West Midlands, 
Highways Agency, West Midlands Regional Assembly and the Environment Agency 
and water companies. 

 
The Key Issues Paper (17 September until 26 October 2007) 

 
2.0 The Herefordshire Core Strategy Issues Paper was published for consultation in 

September 2007. This paper outlined 14 key issues facing the county, asked for views on 
them and their importance, if any had been missed and, what Herefordshire may look like 
in 2026 (the proposed end of the plan period at that stage). The issues had been identified 
from a range of sources including reflecting responses and issues raised during the earlier 
consultation undertaken in the summer 2007. 

 
2.1  This issues consultation was undertaken for six weeks from 17 September until 26 October 

2007 although there were additional workshops and meetings held during October and 
November.  

 
2.2 In order to reach a wide range of the community, a number of consultation methods were 

used including: 
 

• Issues Paper and Questionnaires – Issues Papers and a questionnaire were 
produced and were sent, with an accompanying letter and Freepost return envelope, 
to everyone on the Local Development Framework database. 
  

• Libraries - Packs of leaflets and questionnaires were distributed to all the libraries 
within the county and the Council’s Information Centres together with boxes for 
completed questionnaires to be deposited locally; 

47



 

• Roadshows – An exhibition highlighting the 14 key issues and giving some 
background information was produced. Eight roadshows to display the exhibition 
took place in the first two weeks of October. The first at the Courtyard, Hereford, one 
at each of the market towns and one in Peterchurch within the rural west. For the 
final roadshow a promotional trailer was used on a Saturday in the centre of High 
Town, Hereford. At each of the roadshows, Issues Papers and questionnaires were 
available together with copies of the Herefordshire Partnership’s Community 
Strategy and the State of Herefordshire Report for reference and for background to 
the issues identified. Visitors also had the opportunity to complete comment cards, 
image cards and the comment wall; 
 

• Comment Cards – For each of the identified issue, a set of coloured comment cards 
was produced to allow people to comment on an individual issue during the events 
rather than fill in the full questionnaire. White cards were also provided for people to 
highlight any extra issues which were not included. 
 

• Images of Herefordshire Cards - In order to help formulate a portrait and vision for 
the county, 20 photographs from around Herefordshire depicting a variety of views 
and images were displayed. Visitors were asked to choose the photographs which 
most represented Herefordshire today and which they would like to represent the 
Herefordshire of 2026 (the proposed plan period at this stage); 
 

• Comment Wall – A free-write comment wall was made available at the event for 
participants to write words and phrases which they felt most reflect Herefordshire in 
the response to the question ‘What makes Herefordshire Herefordshire?’ 
 

• School Events – Workshops were held at 3 high schools in the county. Pupils who 
attended the workshops were asked to think about their lives as young people 
today, about their future and how they see Herefordshire developing and what their 
needs might be; 
 

• Website – The Council’s website contains pages devoted to the Local Development 
Framework and the Core Strategy including background information, the Issues 
Paper, a copy of the questionnaire and links to the online ‘Have your say’ page to 
enable online completion of the questionnaire. Links to these pages were available 
from the Council’s homepage, planning services homepage and Forward Planning 
homepage to enable maximum exposure. The web address was printed on all 
written material, in press releases and on pens and coasters; 
 

• Posters – 250 posters were produced to advertise the roadshow events, the majority 
of these were distributed to each of the parish / town councils for them to place them 
on their parish notice boards. The remainder were placed in public buildings, such 
as the Info centres, libraries and shops; 
 

• Advert – The poster was reproduced as a press advert within the Hereford Times, 
which appeared in the 11 October 2007 edition; 
 

• Press Notices – An official public notice appeared in all the local papers (Hereford 
Times, Hereford Journal, Ross Gazette, Malvern Gazette, Mid-Wales Journal) the 
week commencing 10 September 2007; 
 

• BBC Hereford and Worcester Radio Announcements – A radio interview was 
broadcasted between 11 October and 16 October 2007 to publicise the roadshow 
events in the market towns and interviewed a local resident about the key issues 
facing them; 
 

48



 

• Herefordshire Matters – An article was placed within the September Issue of 
Herefordshire Matters entitled ‘Planning the Future of Herefordshire’. This reported 
the findings of the May consultation and highlighted the Key Issues Consultation and 
exhibition; 
 

• First Press – An article appeared within the October issue of First Press entitled 
‘Shaping Herefordshire’s Future’ to publicise the Key Issues Consultation; 
 

• Herefordshire Partnership – The Partnership assisted in the awareness raising of 
the Issues Consultation by including reference to the Core Strategy within their 
Partnership meetings and articles within their newsletters. An exhibition stand, 
leaflets and questionnaires were also made available at the Partnership’s annual 
Funding Fair held 24 October 2007; 
 

• Stakeholder Meetings – Officers from Forward Planning also attended a number of 
meetings to raise awareness of the Core Strategy and the Issues Consultation 
during the three months from September to November 2007. These included a 
meeting of the local environment and countryside group, a networking event for 
community groups exploring local response to climate change and the Higher 
Education management group. 

 
Developing Options (16 June until 8 August 2008) 

 
3.0 By the summer of 2008 a set of emerging options had been developed and consultation 

upon these “developing options” was undertaken from 16 June until 8 August 2008. A 
launch event was organised for invited stakeholders at Herefordshire Group Training 
Association, Holmer Road, Hereford on 16 June 2008. Stakeholders were invited to view 
the Developing Options exhibition, give initial views on the Options and ask Officers 
questions regarding the possible Options. In addition the following actions were undertaken 
as part of the consultation: 

 
• Questionnaire – Stakeholders, parish councils, interest groups and individuals 

contained within the LDF database were sent copies of the summary leaflet, 
questionnaire and an accompanying letter which explained how to get the full 
documentation. Option Papers, summary leaflets and questionnaires were 
distributed to all the libraries within the county, the 2 mobile libraries and the 
Council’s Info centres. The questionnaire could also be completed through the 
Council’s online ‘Have your say’ consultation pages and was available to download 
from the LDF pages on Herefordshire Council’s website; 
 

• Herefordshire Voice Survey – Around 1100 summary leaflets and questionnaires 
were distributed to Herefordshire Voice. This is a citizen’s panel which is a sample in 
terms of gender, age, economic status and ward of Herefordshire’s residents which 
can provide a reliable cross-section of local views; 
 

• Roadshows – Seven ‘Shaping our Place’ roadshows took place between 1 July and 
23 July 2008 in High Town, Hereford, all five market towns and Ewyas Harold in the 
rural west. People were able to view the exhibition, pick up copies of the Developing 
Options paper, summary leaflet and questionnaire. Officers were also available to 
explain the Options further or answer any queries arising; 
 

• Exhibitions – Two ‘Shaping our Place’ exhibitions were held at offices and canteens 
of large local employers in order to reach people who would usually be unavailable 
or unable to attend daytime roadshows and meetings. Planning Officers also 
attended the Edgar Street Grid Masterplan launch event on 8 July 2008 to answer 

49



 

any queries regarding the links between the Core Strategy and the Masterplan and 
to publicise the Core Strategy consultation to all the delegates who attended the 
launch; 
 

• School Events – In order to gain the views of younger people, workshops were 
undertaken in two local high schools, Whitecross High school (7 July 2008) and 
John Kyrle High school in Ross-on-Wye (17 June 2008); 
 

• Parish Council events – Officers from the Forward Planning team gave a 
presentation to the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils (HALC). 
Presentations were also given during June to September to individual or groups of 
parish / town councils as requested. A number of presentations were also given at 
stakeholder and interest group meetings; 
 

• Posters – As for the previous consultation, 250 posters were produced to advertise 
the roadshow events, the majority of these were distributed to each of the parish / 
town councils for them to place them on their parish notice boards. The remainder 
were placed in public buildings, such as the Info centres, libraries and shops; 
 

• Advert – As with the Issues consultation a poster advert was produced for the 
Hereford Times, which appeared in the 26 June 2008 edition, this helped to 
advertise the roadshows. A similar advert appeared in the summer edition of 
Primary Times, which is a free ‘What’s on guide’ distributed through primary schools 
to 16,000 Herefordshire families; 
 

• Press Notices – An official public notice appeared in all local papers (Hereford 
Times, Hereford Journal, Ross Gazette, Malvern Gazette, Mid-Wales Journal) the 
week commencing 9 June 2008; 
 

• Radio Interview and Announcements – Radio Wyvern broadcast a radio interview 
with the Forward Planning Strategic Team Leader during the week commencing 30 
June 2008 to publicise the Developing Options consultation. Announcements also 
appeared on Radio Wyvern during the two weeks of the roadshow exhibition to 
publicise the events; 
 

• Herefordshire Matters – The January to March 2008 edition included an article 
entitled ‘Who’s Shaping your Place 2026’. This reported on the issues consultation 
and how to find the initial findings. A middle page spread featuring the Core Strategy 
and the forthcoming consultation entitled ‘Shaping our Place 2026’ was included in 
the June – September 2008 edition of the magazine; 
 

• First Press / Service Update – The July edition included an article entitled ‘Shaping 
our Place 2026’ to raise awareness of the Developing Options paper, the 
consultation and how to find additional information. Herefordshire Council’s service 
update (March – May 2008) also included an update on the progress of the Core 
Strategy; 
 

• Press Releases – a number of press releases were produced and sent to the local 
press to publicise the Developing Options consultation and the roadshow events. A 
press release was also provided to all parish / town councils to use it as an article 
within their parish magazines or publications. 

 

50



 

Place Shaping Paper (18 January to 12 March 2010) 
 
4.0 The options set out in the Developing Options paper were refined as a result of the 

consultation results, the continuing development of the evidence base and the emerging 
West Midlands Regional Spatial Strategy Revisions. The resulting document was the Place 
Shaping Paper and consultation upon this was undertaken from 18 January to 12 March 
2010. In addition to a refined set of options the Place Shaping paper contained a vision for 
Herefordshire 2026 (the proposed plan period at this stage), 12 Strategic Objectives and 
the preferred Spatial Strategy for the county. 

 
4.1  To assist in the development of the paper, a number of working groups and meetings were 

arranged to involve both internal and external expertise in specific policy areas. To update 
Herefordshire Council Members on the Place Shaping Paper, a Member seminar took 
place on 15 January 2010. A launch event was organised for invited stakeholders at The 
Kindle Centre, Hereford on the 18 January 2010. In addition, the following methods were 
used during the consultation: 

 
• Questionnaire – stakeholders, parish councils, interest groups and individuals 

contained within the LDF database were sent copies of the summary leaflet, 
questionnaire, CD and an accompanying letter which explained how to get the full 
documentation. Packs of the Place Shaping Papers, summary leaflet, questionnaire, 
Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulations Assessment were distributed to all 
the libraries within the county, the 2 mobile libraries and the Council’s Info centres. 
The questionnaire could also be completed through the Council’s online ‘Have your 
say’ consultation pages and was available to download from the LDF pages on 
Herefordshire Council’s website; 
 

• Short Questionnaire – A questionnaire of 6 questions was used to help engage 
more members of the public into the consultation process. The short questionnaire 
had two questions similar to those found in the main questionnaire; the Hereford 
options and the direction of the relief road, the remainder of the questions were 
seeking opinions on how to improve and develop the county up to 2026 (the 
proposed plan period at this stage). This short questionnaire was available at all of 
the public events and roadshows, and it was included as part of the ‘wrap-around’ 
newspaper features; 
 

• Roadshows – Seven ‘Shaping our Place’ roadshows took place between 2 February 
and 24 February 2010 in High Town, Hereford, all five market towns and Ewyas 
Harold in the rural west. People were able to view the exhibition, pick up copies of 
the Place Shaping Paper, summary leaflet and questionnaire. Officers were also 
available to explain the Options further or answer any queries arising. At the 
Hereford Roadshow, in addition voting slips were used to allow the public the 
opportunity to comment on two questions specifically related to the relief road, in a 
simple and easy way, and submit them directly into a ballot box; 
 

• Public Event – An event was held in the Town Hall, Hereford on the 26 January 
which focussed specifically on the issues and options within Hereford. Also an 
evening public event was held at Aylestone Business and Enterprise College on 23 
February 2010 which followed the same structure as the launch event, the voting 
slips were also used at this evening event; 
 

• Business Exhibition and Breakfast Meetings – A business exhibition was held at 
Evans Easyspace, Rotherwas on 4 February 2010, and a stand was manned at the 
Herefordshire Business Expo at Hereford Leisure Centre on 3 March 2010. 

51



 

Business Breakfast meetings were held in Bromyard on 9 February 2010 and at 
Belmont Lodge on 26 February to brief members of the business community. A 
presentation was also made to the Herefordshire Business Partnership meeting on 
14 January in advance of the main consultation event; 
 

• School Events – In order to gain the views of younger people, workshops were 
undertaken in three local high schools, Bishop of Hereford’s Bluecoat School, 
Hereford (24 February 2010), Kingstone High School (2 March 2010) and Queen 
Elizabeth Humanities College (3 March 2010). Students from Holme Lacy College 
were also consulted on 11 February 2010; 
 

• Parish Council Events and stakeholder / interest group meetings – Officers from the 
Forward Planning Team attended 24 meetings held in the rural areas, largely at the 
parish council venues. These were evening meetings targeted at parish councillors 
and rural residents generally and organised on a ward-by-ward rather than individual 
parish council basis. A number of presentations were also given to stakeholder and 
interest group meetings such as the Hereford Civic Society, Country Landowners 
and Business Association; Herefordshire Environmental Partnership, National 
Farmers Union and Green Alliance / Transition; 
 

• Youth Project – In order to engage with the 16-25 year olds across the county, 
Herefordshire Council Voluntary Youth Service organised various meetings and 
events at 11 locations across the county specifically targeted to this age group. The 
consultation process took the form of conversations with individuals and groups, 
with some participants being facilitated to work through a questionnaire, others filling 
in the questionnaire after open discussion around the questions and some taking the 
questionnaires away to fill out in their own time. 
 

• Posters – 500 posters were produced to advertise the roadshow events, the majority 
of these were distributed to each of the parish / town councils for them to place on 
their parish notice boards. The remainder were placed in public buildings, such as 
the Information Centres, libraries and shops; 
 

• Advert – As with the Issues and Developing Options consultation a poster advert 
was produced for the Hereford Times, this helped to advertise the roadshows. A 
similar advert appeared in the Primary Times, which is a free ‘What’s on guide’ 
distributed through primary schools to 16,000 Herefordshire families. Furthermore a 
‘wrap around’ front page advertisement was produced for the Hereford Journal and 
the Admag. This contained a two-sided, front and back page cover which detailed 
the consultation, highlighted the options, advertised the roadshows and contained a 
short questionnaire that could be returned either via the free post address or to the 
Information Centres or libraries; 
 

• Press Notices – An official public notice appeared in the local papers (Hereford 
Times, Hereford Journal, Ross Gazette, Malvern Gazette, Mid-Wales Journal) the 
week commencing 11 January 2010; 
 

• Radio Interview and Announcements – During the eight week consultation there was 
extensive radio coverage with local radio stations Radio Wyvern, BBC Hereford and 
Worcester and Sunshine radio; advertising the roadshows and other public events 
as well as giving details as to where to see the documents; 
 

• Herefordshire Matters – The November 2009 edition included an article which 
advertised the forthcoming ‘Place Shaping’ consultation. The February – April 2010 
edition of the Herefordshire Matters included a four-page article entitled ‘Let’s create 
a New Land of Opportunity Right Here in Herefordshire’. This reported on the 

52



 

current ‘Place Shaping’ consultation and how to provide comments. There was also 
a short questionnaire available to cut out and send to the Freepost address. 
 

• First Press/Service Update – The 26 January edition included an article entitled 
‘Take a few moments to shape the future of Herefordshire’ to raise awareness of the 
Place Shaping paper. 
 

• Press Releases – A number of press releases were produced and sent to the local 
press to publicise the Place Shaping consultation and roadshow events. A press 
release was also provided to all parish / town councils to use it as an article within 
their parish magazines or publications. 

 
Preferred Options (July to November 2010) 

 
5.0  In the second half of 2010 the options which had been consulted upon during the Place 

Shaping stage were further developed into a single set of preferred options for each place 
and policy topic area of the Core Strategy. These place and topic specific Preferred Options 
were the subject of targeted consultations. 

 
5.1 The series of targeted consultations took place from July to November 2010. The first 

papers that were consulted upon include the preferred options for the rural areas, market 
towns – Bromyard, Ledbury and Ross-on-Wye, and a first tranche of general policies which 
included: Natural and built heritage assets; green infrastructure; movement; waste; 
minerals; employment; affordable housing; Gypsy and traveller sites; open space; sport 
and recreation and social and community infrastructure. This consultation period took place 
from 27 July – 20 September 2010. There was no preferred option paper for Kington and 
Leominster as the preferred option for these places had already been identified and 
consulted on with the publication of the Place Shaping paper. 

 
5.2  The second round of targeted consultation incorporated the Hereford Preferred Option (27 

September until 19 November 2010). A second tranche of General policies including 
policies on: the economy; sustainable strategic design; tourism; sustainable water 
management; renewable energy and infrastructure contributions were consulted upon from 
11 October until 5 November 2010. 

 
5.3  For each of the targeted consultations letters were sent out, along with a copy of the 

relevant preferred option document, to everybody who had responded and shown an 
interest to a particular section within the Place Shaping consultation. Copies of each of the 
Preferred Options document, summary leaflet and questionnaire were also distributed to 
Information Shops and libraries within the county. For each of the Preferred Option papers 
the question was asked ‘Do you agree with this preferred option? If not, please explain 
which elements of the policy you do not agree with and why.’ In addition, the following also 
took place throughout the targeted consultations: 

 
• Adverts – Poster adverts detailing the consultation dates and advertising various 

public events were published within the Hereford Times, Hereford Journal and the 
Primary Times; 
 

• Herefordshire Matters – There was an article published in the November 2010 issue, 
entitled ‘Your views on shaping Hereford’; 
 

53



 

• Public Meetings / Parish Council Events – There were 22 drop in / public meetings 
or parish council events organised over the consultation periods, in order to allow 
parish councillors and members of the public the opportunity to view and discuss 
through the Preferred Options with a member of the Forward Planning team. 19 of 
these meetings were concerned with the Hereford Preferred Option. 
 

Revised Preferred Option (26 September 2011 and 28 November 2011) 
 
6.0 Subsequently, as a result of the responses to the Preferred Option consultation, additional 

information commissioned for the evidence base and due to changes being made to the 
national planning system a number of revisions were proposed to the Preferred Options. 
These revisions were proposed in relation to revising the plan period, reducing overall 
housing numbers in the county, to the strategy for Hereford, housing numbers in 
Leominster, Ross and the rural areas and employment provision for Leominster. As a result 
of these changes it was considered appropriate to undertake a further consultation 
focussing upon the proposed changes. 

 
6.1  The revised preferred option consultation took place between 26 September 2011 and 28 

November 2011. Letters and a summary leaflet detailing the Revised Preferred Options 
were sent out to everyone on the LDF database on 23 September 2011, including parish 
and town councils, key stakeholders, interested parties and all those who have responded 
to previous consultations. Copies of the summary leaflet and letter were also distributed to 
all the Information Centres and libraries. In addition to this: 

 
• Adverts – Poster adverts detailing the consultation dates and advertising were 

published within the Hereford Times, Hereford Journal, Ross Gazette, Ledbury 
Reporter, Malvern Gazette and the Mid-Wales journal on the week commencing 19 

September 2011; 
 

• Ward / Public Meetings and Drop In Events – 33 evening events were held across 
the county during September, October and November 2011 largely based upon 
Herefordshire Council wards. The meetings consisted of a presentation to identify 
the overall changes to the Core Strategy and also a localised Ward presentation. 
Similar presentations were given to Hereford City and Town Councils. In addition, 
separate public meetings were held in Hereford (Whitecross School) and Ledbury, 
and a day-time drop in event held in Clehonger; 
  

• Leaflets – Around 900 leaflets were distributed to the Federation of Small Business 
for distribution with one of their newsletters and a number of Councillors requested 
copies of the leaflet to distribute locally; 
 

• Herefordshire Matters – An article was published in the August 2011 edition of 
Herefordshire Matters to advertise the forthcoming consultation and details of the 
Revised Preferred Option were incorporated in the November edition of 
Herefordshire Matters; 
 

• Stakeholders / Interest Group Meetings – In addition to the public and Ward based 
meetings further meetings were arranged with a number of stakeholder groups 
including Hereford City Forum, Hereford Futures and Registered Social Landlords 
through October 2011. A Stakeholder event was also held on the 5 October at the 
Kindle Centre, Hereford to inform the Stakeholders of the content of the Revised 
Preferred option and to allow for comments and discussion. 

54



O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y

18
th

Ju
ne

 2
01

3

B
ud

ge
t P

re
se

nt
at

io
n

55



B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
20

13
/1

4

•
T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
no

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ne
t 

bu
dg

et
 to

ta
l o

f £
15

0.
29

6m
. 

•
F

un
di

ng
 u

nc
ha

ng
ed

 a
s;

£0
00

R
ev

en
ue

 S
up

po
rt

 G
ra

nt
42

,8
61

Lo
ca

lly
 r

et
ai

ne
d 

ra
te

s
22

,7
26

R
at

es
 ‘t

op
-u

p’
6,

55
9

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x

78
,9

11

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

F
un

d 
de

fic
it

(7
61

)

N
et

 B
u

d
g

et
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t

15
0,

29
6

56



K
P

M
G

 R
ev

ie
w

 C
on

cl
us

io
ns

•
T

he
 tr

ea
tm

en
t o

f t
he

 £
3.

8m
 g

ra
nt

 h
ad

 n
o 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l n
et

 b
ud

ge
t a

gr
ee

d 
by

 c
ou

nc
il 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y

•
G

re
at

er
 le

ve
l o

f d
et

ai
l i

n 
bu

dg
et

 p
ap

er
s 

to
 c

ab
in

et
 

an
d 

co
un

ci
l m

ay
 h

av
e 

he
lp

ed
 id

en
tif

y 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
•

H
ig

h 
le

ve
l c

on
tr

ol
 o

f 2
01

3/
14

 P
eo

pl
es

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
bu

dg
et

 e
vi

de
nt

•
F

or
m

al
 s

ig
n 

–o
ff 

of
 H

oo
pl

e 
B

ud
ge

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d
•

La
ck

 o
f s

ta
bi

lit
y 

in
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
a 

hi
st

or
ic

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tr

ol
•

C
ou

nc
il 

to
ok

 ti
m

el
y 

ac
tio

n 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 is
su

e 
an

d 
gi

ve
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 b

ud
ge

t s
ou

nd
ly

 b
as

ed

57



P
eo

p
le

’s
 B

u
d

g
et

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 

M
o

ve
m

en
t

O
ri

g
in

al
M

it
ig

at
io

n
R

ev
ie

w
p

o
si

ti
o

n
M

it
ig

at
io

n
R

ei
n

st
at

ed

To
ta

l 
b

ef
o

re
n

ew
sc

h
em

es
N

ew
sc

h
em

es
P

u
b

lic
h

ea
lt

h

R
ev

is
ed

sh
o

rt
fa

ll
in

P
eo

p
le

s

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

S
av

in
g

s
sh

o
rt

fa
ll

4,
21

5
(7

04
)

3,
51

1
(1

,5
78

)
1,

93
3

(1
,6

21
)

(9
7)

21
5

N
ew

p
re

ss
u

re
s

4,
26

8
(3

77
)

3,
89

1
(7

12
)

3,
17

9
(6

04
)

2,
57

5

8,
48

3
(1

,0
81

)
7,

40
2

(7
12

)
(1

,5
78

)
5,

11
2

(2
,2

25
)

(9
7)

2,
79

0

58



D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 C

o
n

tr
o

l T
o

ta
ls

 2
01

3/
14

C
ab

in
et

re
p

o
rt

ap
p

en
d

ix

R
o

o
t 

an
d

 
B

ra
n

ch
ad

ju
st

m
en

t
(1

)

E
H

T
S

tr
an

sf
er

(2
)

B
u

d
g

et
b

ef
o

re
re

vi
se

d
sa

vi
n

g
s

B
u

d
g

et
re

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n

(F
ro

m
)/

To
R

ev
is

ed
B

u
d

g
et

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

19
,7

66
(5

0)
19

,7
16

(2
,0

82
)

17
,6

34

P
eo

p
le

's
78

,7
12

(1
,2

61
)

77
,4

51
2,

79
0

80
,2

41

P
la

ce
s 

an
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

36
,5

33
50

1,
26

1
37

,8
44

(1
,4

42
)

36
,4

02

C
ro

ss
 c

u
tt

in
g

 s
av

in
g

s 
to

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d
0

(5
17

)
(5

17
)

C
en

tr
al

ly
 h

el
d

 b
u

d
g

et
s

15
,2

85
15

,2
85

93
2

16
,2

17

S
u

rp
lu

s
31

9
31

9

15
0,

29
6

0
0

15
0,

29
6

0
15

0,
29

6
N

ot
es

1.
 R

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 s
af

er
 a

nd
 s

tr
on

ge
r 

ta
rg

et
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

di
re

ct
or

at
es

2.
 T

he
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 T
ra

di
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 s

er
vi

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
P

eo
pl

e'
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

to
 th

e 
P

la
ce

s 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e

59



A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 C
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
y 

(1
)

•
A

S
C

 b
ud

ge
t p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
cl

ie
nt

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
gr

ow
th

.
•

In
cl

ud
ed

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l s

av
in

gs
 ta

rg
et

s 
e.

g.
 £

2m
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

hi
gh

 c
os

t 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 in
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 &

 L
D

.
•

N
ew

 in
te

rim
 A

D
’s

 a
rr

iv
ed

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

3,
 b

eg
an

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
sc

al
e 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
•

T
w

o 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 O

S
C

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 A
S

C
 b

ud
ge

ts
 p

rio
r 

to
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 s
ig

n 
of

f.
•

T
he

 R
&

B
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 o
n 

5t
h

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
su

m
m

ar
is

ed
 th

e 
 

un
fin

is
he

d 
R

&
B

 w
or

k 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pl

an
s.

 T
he

 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
se

 p
la

ns
 fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

ze
ro

 
ba

se
d 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 d

et
ai

le
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pl
an

s.
•

B
us

in
es

s 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
/ M

ar
ch

 s
ha

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

re
vi

ew
.

60



U
nf

in
is

he
d 

R
&

B
 W

or
k 

S
um

m
ar

y
(r

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 5
th

F
eb

ru
ar

y)
B

as
is

 o
f 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

C
h

an
g

e 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

/ Z
er

o
 b

as
ed

 
b

u
d

g
et

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 t
o

 d
et

ai
le

d
 s

av
in

g
s 

sc
h

em
es

•
B

rin
gi

ng
 th

e 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

A
du

lts
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

to
ge

th
er

 (
m

er
ge

d 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

A
S

C
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
ha

ng
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e)

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 o

f t
he

 C
ar

e 
an

d 
S

up
po

rt
 B

ill
•

O
pt

io
ns

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 o

f a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

m
od

el
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ut

ua
l/s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
e.

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

pr
ac

tic
e,

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

T
ra

di
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

•
R

ec
as

tin
g 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ne
w

 m
od

el
s 

of
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
jo

in
t c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
•

W
or

kf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ut

ili
si

ng
 L

E
A

N
, S

ki
ll 

m
ix

 a
nd

 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 p
at

hw
ay

s
•

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

m
ar

ke
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

m
ax

im
is

in
g 

pe
op

le
 c

en
tr

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
an

d 
pr

ev
en

ta
bl

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

61



A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 C
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
y 

(2
)

Z
E

R
O

 B
A

S
E

D
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
 (

1)
•

B
ui

lt 
up

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 r

ed
es

ig
n 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
•

N
ee

de
d 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 c
lie

nt
 n

um
be

rs
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 
of

 d
et

ai
le

d 
cl

ie
nt

 b
ud

ge
ts

. (
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

ou
ttu

rn
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 c

lie
nt

 n
um

be
rs

 in
 s

om
e 

se
rv

ic
es

)
•

U
se

d 
en

d 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 a
ct

ua
l c

lie
nt

 n
um

be
rs

 a
s 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
up

da
te

d 
bu

dg
et

.
•

S
er

vi
ce

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

th
at

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 / 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

w
ou

ld
 d

el
iv

er
 z

er
o 

ne
t g

ro
w

th
 in

 c
lie

nt
 n

um
be

rs
 in

 1
3/

14
.

•
A

ll 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 a
 n

um
be

r 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 d

ue
 to

 e
nd

 
M

ar
ch

 1
3 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

st
op

pe
d .

62



A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 C
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
y 

(3
)

Z
E

R
O

 B
A

S
E

D
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
 (

2)
•

D
et

ai
le

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
pl

an
s 

w
or

ke
d 

up
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 A
D

 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

th
em

es
 fo

r 
sa

vi
ng

s.
 T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
ed

: 
–

C
on

tr
ac

t r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 / 

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

–
S

er
vi

ce
 r

ed
es

ig
n 

(s
ec

tio
n 

75
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 W
V

T
)

–
D

em
an

d 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 (
m

od
el

le
d 

by
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
)

–
C

os
t o

f c
ar

e 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 (
m

od
el

le
d 

by
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
)

–
In

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

(m
od

el
le

d 
by

 c
lie

nt
 g

ro
up

)

•
E

nd
 r

es
ul

t t
ha

t s
av

in
gs

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
nc

re
as

ed
 in

 A
S

C
 

by
 £

1.
14

4m
 (

la
rg

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

f f
ul

l y
ea

r 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f n

ew
 

pa
ck

ag
es

 fr
om

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

to
 F

eb
ru

ar
y)

63



A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 C
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
y 

(4
)

•
E

ar
ly

 A
pr

il 
be

ga
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 p

ro
fil

in
g 

up
da

te
d 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
er

ro
r 

w
ith

 £
3.

8m
 L

D
 g

ra
nt

. 
•

If 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 th

en
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

£3
.8

m
 o

f s
av

in
gs

 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

at
 th

at
 p

oi
nt

.
•

A
ls

o 
be

ga
n 

re
vi

ew
 o

f b
ud

ge
t a

nd
 fl

ag
ge

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l r

is
ks

 
ar

ou
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
om

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

. T
oo

k 
a 

pr
ud

en
t v

ie
w

 o
f 

sa
vi

ng
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e 
gi

vi
ng

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
fla

gg
ed

 o
f £

7.
4m

.
•

W
or

k 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

av
in

gs
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

w
ith

in
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

nd
 to

 r
ec

ov
er

 s
av

in
gs

 fl
ag

ge
d 

as
 a

t r
is

k.
 

•
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ov
er

ed
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
ll 

ex
ce

pt
 

£2
.8

m
 o

f £
7.

4m
 p

re
ss

ur
e.

64



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ben Baugh, Democratic Services Officer 
on Tel: (01432) 261882 

 

 

MEETING: GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 18 JUNE 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  HEAD OF GOVERNANCE & MONITORING OFFICER 

1. Classification 

Open. 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide.  

4. Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

5. Recommendation 

THAT the work programme be noted, subject to any comments the Committee 
wishes to make. 

6. Key Points Summary 

6.1  The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on current work. 

6.2 At its meeting on 11 February 2013, the Committee agreed that the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman should review the committee work programme with a view to recommending 
items for the next 6 months and priorities for the next 12 months for policy development.  
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman now meet on a regular basis to consider the programme 
and a revised programme is appended for consideration.  Further meetings will be held to 
further develop the programme.  Should Committee Members become aware of issues 
please discuss the matter with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and the Scrutiny Officer.   

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the priorities 
facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the work programme.  
However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure that the work programme is 

AGENDA ITEM 9

65



 
 
 

focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable within the existing resources available. 

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 The Committee needs to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that scrutiny is 
focused, effective and produces clear outcomes. 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 An outline work programme is appended for this meeting.  This is because the programme 
is under continuous review. 

10. Key Considerations 

10.1 The work programme needs to focus on the key issues of concern and be manageable 
allowing for urgent items or matters that have been called-in. 

11. Community Impact 

11.1 The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to residents. 

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 The topics selected need to have regard for equality and human rights issues. 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 The cost of the work of the Scrutiny Committee will have to be met within existing 
resources.  It should be noted the costs of running scrutiny will be subject to an assessment 
to support appropriate processes. 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 The Council is required to deliver an Overview and Scrutiny function. 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 There is a reputational risk to the Council if the Overview and Scrutiny function does not 
operate effectively.  The arrangements for the development of the work programme should 
help mitigate this risk. 

16. Consultees 

16.1 Following initial consultations on topics for scrutiny with Directors and Members of the 
Cabinet, all members of the Council were invited to suggest items for scrutiny. 

 

66



 
 
 

17. Appendices 

17.1 Appendix A: Draft Work Programme 

17.2 Appendix B: Task and Finish Reviews - Progress Report 

17.3 Appendix C: Executive Rolling Programme (as at the time of going to print). 

18. Background Papers 

18.1 None identified. 

67



68



GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
ITEMS IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAME 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME  

Monday 8 July 2013 at 10.00am 

Music Service Agreed in July 2011 to review after 2 years.  To receive an 
update on how the service is performing since the reconfiguration 
of the Service in 2011 including accessibility to the service; 
peripatetic links to the schools and school results. 

Budget Monitoring To consider the Executives response to the Council’s budget 
position. 

Implications for Scrutiny 
Following the Francis Inquiry 
Report

To consider the implications for scrutiny following the Francis 
Inquiry Report - Report of the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation 
Trust Public Inquiry. 

Housing Allocation Policy - 
Task & Finish Group 

To consider the Executive response and Action Plan arising from 
the Housing Allocation Policy - Task & Finish Group. 

Tuesday 3 September 2013 at 5.00pm 

Waste Contract Update To receive an update on the Waste Contract prior to 
consideration by Cabinet 

Monday 7 October 2013 at 10.00am 

Root and Branch Reviews - 
Update

To receive an update and consider progress as it relates to this 
Committee.

Task & Finish – Income & 
Charging -  Projected 
Additional Income 

O&SC 19 March 2012 added to the T&F Report that a report be 
made in October 2013 setting out how much of the projected 
additional income had been achieved and reviewing the intended 
and unintended consequences of new/additional charges. 

Monday 11 November 2013 at 10.00am 

Monday 9 December 2013 at 10.00am 

School Examination 
Performance 

To consider the examination performance in Herefordshire 
Schools. 

APPENDIX A

69



The following issues have been identified for consideration but not scheduled:  

Corporate Delivery Plan and Performance Monitoring 

Performance Report on Hoople 

Performance Report on Waste Management 

Broadband

Document Control and Information, including the website 

CIL

Financial Inclusion Strategy 

Previously the agenda included a schedule of suggestions for scrutiny made by the public.  As the 
majority of those suggestions related to the Local Transport Plan and/or Local Development 
Framework the issues raised have been logged and will be raised when the subject comes before 
the Committee.

70



T
as

k 
an

d
 F

in
is

h
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

- 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 R
ep

o
rt

 

G
en

er
al

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

R
E

V
IE

W
S

 ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 F

O
R

 F
E

A
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
T

U
D

Y
 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 R
ev

ie
w

 
S

ta
tu

s 

F
re

e 
S

ch
oo

ls
 

T
he

 C
ha

irm
an

 h
as

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 fr
ee

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 w
ill

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
  T

he
 

C
ha

irm
an

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n.
 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
F

ea
si

bi
lit

y 
S

tu
dy

 c
om

pl
et

e.
  S

co
pi

ng
 to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

. 

25
.3

.1
3 

C
ha

irm
an

, V
ic

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 a

nd
 C

llr
 B

rig
 P

 J
on

es
 C

B
E

 m
et

 w
ith

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 

of
fic

er
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 p

os
si

bl
e 

is
su

es
 fo

r 
a 

re
vi

ew
.  

H
av

in
g 

di
sc

us
se

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

nd
 h

ea
rd

 h
ow

 th
e 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

 is
 n

ow
 

on
 a

 m
or

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 fo

ot
in

g 
an

d 
th

at
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

no
w

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
bu

dg
et

s 
an

d 
ca

se
s 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ec
id

ed
 

no
t t

o 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

a 
T

as
k 

&
 F

in
is

h 
R

ev
ie

w
. 

T
he

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
8 

A
pr

il 
re

qu
es

te
d 

th
at

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

m
ee

tin
g 

be
 h

el
d 

in
 3

 m
on

th
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
as

 b
ei

ng
 m

ad
e.

 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

&
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 J
oi

nt
 V

en
tu

re
s/

P
ar

tn
er

in
g 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

F
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

S
tu

dy
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  S
co

pi
ng

 to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
. 

T
he

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t o

ffi
ce

rs
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 a
 fu

tu
re

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l i

te
m

 fo
r 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

13
 M

ay
 2

01
3 

- 
th

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 r

ep
or

te
d 

th
at

 h
e 

w
as

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

a 
po

ss
ib

le
 a

ll 
m

em
be

r 
se

m
in

ar
 o

n 
th

e 
is

su
e.

 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
F

ea
si

bi
lit

y 
S

tu
dy

 c
om

pl
et

e.
  S

co
pi

ng
 to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

.

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

up
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

A
rt

s 
T

he
 C

ha
irm

an
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 th
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
t t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

10
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

.  
S

co
pi

ng
 o

f t
he

 r
ev

ie
w

 is
 a

t v
er

y 
ea

rly
 

st
ag

es
.

T
he

 C
ha

irm
an

 a
nd

 C
llr

 G
R

 S
w

in
fo

rd
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

a 
po

ss
ib

le
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

rio
r 

to
 s

ee
ki

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 

T
he

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 u
p 

a 
sc

op
in

g 
st

at
em

en
t f

or
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n.

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
B

71



R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
P

ol
ic

y 
T

hi
s 

re
vi

ew
 w

as
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 a
t t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

10
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

.  
 

13
 M

ay
 2

01
3 

- 
T

he
 C

ha
irm

an
 is

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
he

m
es

 fo
r 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

 a
 p

os
si

bl
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 
po

lic
y.

M
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

‘P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

V
is

io
n’

  
T

hi
s 

re
vi

ew
 w

as
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 a
t t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

10
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

.  
T

hi
s 

re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
vi

si
on

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

20
13

/1
5 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 C

ou
nc

il 
23

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

12
. 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l B
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t (
F

ur
th

er
 R

ev
ie

w
) 

T
he

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
10

 D
ec

em
be

r 
de

ci
de

d 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

sh
or

t r
ev

ie
w

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

up
da

te
.  

T
he

 C
ha

irm
an

 o
f t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 s
ou

gh
t f

ur
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

P
ro

ac
tis

 s
ys

te
m

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

at
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

as
 b

ei
ng

 o
f c

on
ce

rn
 a

nd
 h

e 
w

ill
 th

en
 d

ec
id

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

re
 s

til
l w

ar
ra

nt
ed

 o
r 

w
he

th
er

 
to

 r
ef

or
m

 th
e 

T
&

F
 G

ro
up

. 

14
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 -
 T

he
 C

ha
irm

an
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 C

llr
 A

M
 A

tk
in

so
n 

an
d 

C
llr

 G
A

 P
ow

el
l m

et
 w

ith
 th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 1
4 

F
eb

ru
ar

y.
  W

hi
le

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
di

sa
pp

oi
nt

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 h
ad

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 th
ey

 a
pp

re
ci

at
ed

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
bl

em
s 

in
 a

ttr
ac

tin
g 

st
af

f t
o 

ke
y 

po
st

s 
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
T

ea
m

.  
H

av
in

g 
be

en
 a

pp
ra

is
ed

 o
f t

he
 p

os
iti

on
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
P

ro
ac

tis
 S

ys
te

m
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
co

nc
er

ns
 w

er
e 

al
la

ye
d.

 M
em

be
rs

 w
ill

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
up

da
te

 in
 3

 m
on

th
s’

 ti
m

e.
 

A
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

C
ha

irm
an

 h
as

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 h
ow

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

ttr
ac

tin
g 

pe
rs

on
ne

l t
o 

ke
y 

po
st

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 d

riv
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
sa

vi
ng

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
IT

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
S

ys
te

m
s 

Ite
m

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
at

 1
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

.  
In

iti
al

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

. 

T
he

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 li
ai

si
ng

 w
ith

 s
en

io
r 

of
fic

er
s 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 fu
rt

he
r 

w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

. 

D
ig

ita
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

in
iti

al
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 k

ey
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 th

e 
V

ic
e-

C
ha

irm
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

. A
 d

ra
ft 

sc
op

in
g 

st
at

em
en

t f
or

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

  

72



 

R
E

V
IE

W
S

 IN
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

s 
C

o
m

m
en

t 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
Le

vy
 -

 D
ra

ft 
P

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 (
P

ar
t 2

) 

- 
T

he
 r

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 T

&
F

 G
ro

up
 w

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
10

 D
ec

em
be

r 
an

d 
fo

rw
ar

de
d 

to
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

fo
r 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
  A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

at
 r

ev
ie

w
 it

 w
as

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 th

at
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

w
as

 
ne

ed
ed

.  
T

he
 G

ro
up

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 th
at

 w
or

k.
 

 
6/

2/
13

 
T

he
 T

&
F

 G
ro

up
 m

et
 o

n 
6 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
n 

up
da

te
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

w
or

k 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 fu

lfi
l i

ts
 

te
rm

s 
of

 r
ef

er
en

ce
. 

 
18

/3
/1

3 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
he

ld
 w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

rs
.  

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
no

w
 b

ei
ng

 g
iv

en
 to

 p
os

si
bl

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

.  

 
22

/5
/1

3 
T

he
 C

ha
irm

an
 o

f t
he

 R
ev

ie
w

 m
et

 w
ith

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r 

P
la

ce
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

 E
co

no
m

ic
, E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 a

 r
ev

is
ed

 ti
m

et
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 T
he

 R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
nv

en
in

g 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

w
ee

k 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 2

4 
Ju

ne
 2

01
3.

 

R
E

V
IE

W
S

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 A

N
D

 A
W

A
IT

IN
G

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
C

o
m

m
en

t 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
P

ol
ic

y 
T

as
k 

&
 F

in
is

h 
G

ro
up

 R
ep

or
t 

T
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

er
e 

ag
re

ed
 a

t t
he

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

13
 M

ay
 2

01
3 

an
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pa

ss
ed

 to
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

se
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
.  

It 
is

 h
op

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

an
d 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 th

is
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
8 

Ju
ly

. 

R
E

V
IE

W
S

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
U

B
JE

C
T

 T
O

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 O
F

 T
H

E
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 

R
ev

ie
w

 
C

o
m

m
en

t 

 
N

on
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 in
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n.
 

73



74



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
1 

of
 7

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
R

ol
lin

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e:
  J

u
n

e 
20

13
 

F
in

al
 D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

e r
M

ee
ti

n
g

 / 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

at
e 

Is
su

e 
T

yp
e:

 
K

E
Y

 
B

u
d

g
et

 &
 P

o
lic

y 
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 It

em
 

(B
&

P
F

) 
 

N
on

 K
ey

R
ep

o
rt

 T
it

le
P

u
rp

o
se

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 L

ea
d

 
O

ff
ic

er

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 
13

/0
6/

13
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

M
ee

tin
g 

K
E

Y
F

ut
ur

e 
C

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

F
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 r

ep
la

ce
 th

e 
A

m
ey

 c
on

tr
ac

t. 
P

la
ce

s 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 / 

R
ic

ha
rd

 B
al

l /
 R

ob
 

E
w

in
g

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 

C
M

 E
H

&
P

 

20
/6

/1
3 

K
E

Y
H

ou
si

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 
A

do
pt

io
n 

P
ol

ic
y 

T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
P

ol
ic

y 
de

sc
rib

es
 th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 th
at

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
us

es
 to

 
pr

io
rit

is
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 a
 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

.  
T

he
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 u
si

ng
 

po
w

er
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Lo

ca
lis

m
 A

ct
 2

01
1 

w
hi

ch
 g

iv
es

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 it
s 

po
lic

y 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
em

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g 

re
gi

st
er

s 
w

hi
ch

 
be

tte
r 

re
fle

ct
s 

lo
ca

l d
em

an
d,

 w
hi

ls
t s

til
l p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e.
 

P
la

ce
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 / 
R

ic
ha

rd
 G

ab
b 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 

C
M

 F
M

 

20
/6

/1
3 

N
on

 K
ey

 
B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
T

o 
re

po
rt

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 fo
r 

bo
th

 R
ev

en
ue

 
an

d 
C

ap
ita

l. 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

D
av

id
 P

ow
el

l 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 

C
M

 C
S

 

20
/0

6/
13

 
N

on
 K

ey
 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 A

nn
ua

l 
R

ep
or

t 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

Je
nn

y 
Le

w
is

 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 

C
M

 C
S

 

20
/0

6/
13

 
N

on
 K

ey
 

20
12

/1
3 

 
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

re
po

rt
 

(P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
)

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

Je
nn

y 
Le

w
is

 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 -
 

20
/0

6/
13

 
N

on
 K

ey
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
P

ol
ic

y
T

o 
ag

re
e 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

in
 th

e 
lig

ht
 o

f 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
Je

nn
y 

Le
w

is
 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 P
or

tfo
lio

 -
  

20
/6

/1
3 

K
E

Y
O

pe
n 

B
oo

k 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
R

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 N
ur

si
ng

 
H

om
e 

F
ee

s 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

e 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 p

ric
in

g 
m

od
el

 fo
r 

fe
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
C

75



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
2 

of
 7

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 IT
E

M
S

 –
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
3 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

/
B

R
IE

F
N

G
 D

A
T

E
 

IT
E

M
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 

O
&

S
C

 P
R

E
-D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
: 

A
&

G
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
ab

in
et

  
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 D

at
e 

18
 J

un
e 

20
13

 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 L

D
F

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
by

 
C

ab
in

et
 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 S

O
C

IA
L

 C
A

R
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
  I

T
E

M
S

 –
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
3

M
E

E
T

IN
G

/
B

R
IE

F
N

G
 D

A
T

E
 

IT
E

M
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 

O
&

S
C

 P
R

E
-D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
: 

A
&

G
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
C

ab
in

et
  

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 D

at
e 

7 
Ju

ne
 2

01
3 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

T
ru

st
 (

tb
c)

 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

 
 

7 
Ju

ne
 2

01
3 

R
ec

ov
er

y 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
pr

og
re

ss
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
 

 
 

7 
Ju

ne
 2

01
3 

W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

s 
W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

 
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
R

ol
lin

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e:
 J

u
ly

 2
01

3

F
in

al
 D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

er
M

ee
ti

n
g

 / 
D

ec
is

io
n

 D
at

e 
Is

su
e 

T
yp

e:
 

K
E

Y
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 P
o

lic
y 

F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 It
em

 
(B

&
P

F
) 

 
N

on
 K

ey

R
ep

o
rt

 T
it

le
P

u
rp

o
se

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 L

ea
d

 
O

ff
ic

er

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

4/
7/

13
 

B
&

P
F

 
*d

ec
is

io
n 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
- 

Ju
ly

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
28

 d
ay

 
no

tic
e

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
 

T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

LD
F

 fo
r 

ad
op

tio
n 

by
 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

ce
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 / 
Y

vo
nn

e 
C

ol
em

an
 

A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
5/

7/
13

 
N

/A
 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

F
ee

 L
et

te
r 

an
d 

P
la

n 
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
D

av
id

 P
ow

el
l 

A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

5/
7/

13
 

N
/A

 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

76



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
3 

of
 7

 F
in

al
 D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

e r
M

ee
ti

n
g

 / 
D

ec
is

io
n

 D
at

e 
Is

su
e 

T
yp

e:
 

K
E

Y
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 P
o

lic
y 

F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 It
em

 
(B

&
P

F
) 

 
N

on
 K

ey

R
ep

o
rt

 T
it

le
P

u
rp

o
se

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 L

ea
d

 
O

ff
ic

er

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

D
av

id
 P

ow
el

l 
A

ud
it 

&
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
5/

7/
13

 
N

/A
 

A
nn

ua
l I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

P
la

n
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
D

av
id

 P
ow

el
l 

A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

5/
7/

13
 

N
/A

 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

D
av

id
 P

ow
el

l 

A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
5/

7/
13

 
N

/A
 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

C
od

e 
C

M
  

12
/7

/1
3 

N
on

 K
ey

 

N
on

 K
ey

 

H
al

o 
P

ru
de

nt
ia

l 
B

or
ro

w
in

g 
fo

r 
P

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 A

ir 
H

an
dl

in
g 

U
ni

ts
 fo

r 
Le

db
ur

y 
S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

oo
l 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
pr

ud
en

tia
l b

or
ro

w
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

of
 A

ir 
H

an
dl

in
g 

U
ni

ts
 fo

r 
Le

db
ur

y 
S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

oo
l 

P
la

ce
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

  /
 M

ic
k 

Li
ge

m
a 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
19

/7
/1

3 
N

/A
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
W

or
ce

st
er

 
F

ire
 a

nd
 R

es
cu

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

R
ep

or
t 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

  
19

/7
/1

3 
N

/A
 

Le
ad

er
’s

 R
ep

or
t 

T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

th
e 

Le
ad

er
’s

 r
ep

or
t, 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

an
 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
ac

tiv
ity

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

19
/7

/1
3 

N
/A

 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

t 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

P
an

el
 R

ep
or

t  

T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
re

po
rt

 o
n 

st
an

da
rd

s 
ca

se
 (

C
llr

 
G

le
nd

a 
P

ow
el

l) 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
19

/7
/1

3 
B

&
P

F
 s

am
e 

as
 K

D
 

re
q

u
ir

es
 2

8 
d

ay
 

n
o

ti
ce

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
co

re
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

LD
F

 fo
r 

ad
op

tio
n 

by
 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

ce
s 

&
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
A

nd
re

w
 A

sh
cr

of
t 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
19

/7
/1

3 
 

N
/A

 
E

le
ct

or
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
re

po
rt

 o
n 

th
e 

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 fi
na

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

E
le

ct
or

al
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
19

/0
7/

13
 

N
/A

 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t o

f R
et

ur
ni

ng
 

O
ffi

ce
r 

&
 E

le
ct

or
al

 
R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
r 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Jo

hn
 J

on
es

 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 

C
M

 C
S

 

25
/7

/1
3 

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t Q

1 
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

77



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
4 

of
 7

 F
in

al
 D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

e r
M

ee
ti

n
g

 / 
D

ec
is

io
n

 D
at

e 
Is

su
e 

T
yp

e:
 

K
E

Y
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 P
o

lic
y 

F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 It
em

 
(B

&
P

F
) 

 
N

on
 K

ey

R
ep

o
rt

 T
it

le
P

u
rp

o
se

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 L

ea
d

 
O

ff
ic

er

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 

C
M

 F
M

 

25
/7

/1
3 

N
on

 K
ey

 
B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
T

o 
re

po
rt

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 fo
r 

bo
th

 R
ev

en
ue

 
an

d 
C

ap
ita

l. 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

D
av

id
 P

ow
el

l 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 
25

/7
/1

3 
K

E
Y

P
os

t 1
6 

Le
ar

ne
rs

 w
ith

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
&

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
(L

LD
D

) 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 
25

/7
/1

3 
K

E
Y

N
ex

t S
ta

ge
 In

te
gr

at
io

n 
– 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

25
/7

/1
3 

K
E

Y
S

ho
rt

 b
re

ak
s 

an
d 

R
es

pi
te

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

P
hi

lip
pa

 G
ra

nt
hi

er
 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 
25

/0
7/

13
 

K
E

Y
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ D
om

ic
ili

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
E

le
m

en
t 

T
o 

se
t o

ut
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

an
d 

tim
ef

ra
m

es
 

fo
r 

a 
de

ci
si

on
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

do
m

ic
ili

ar
y 

ca
re

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
tim

ef
ra

m
es

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
s 

du
e 

to
 e

xp
ire

 O
ct

 2
01

3 
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ca

bi
ne

t w
ith

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

m
od

el
s 

of
 

do
m

ic
ili

ar
y 

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
a 

de
ci

si
on

 w
hi

ch
 

m
od

el
 to

 p
ro

cu
re

.

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
av

id
 P

ow
el

l W
ay

ne
 

W
el

sb
y 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

25
/7

/1
3 

K
E

Y
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

N
et

w
or

k 
R

en
ew

al
 (

P
S

N
) 

T
o 

ou
tli

ne
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r 
N

et
w

or
k 

re
ne

w
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
P

ub
lic

 S
ec

to
r 

N
et

w
or

k 
O

pt
io

ns
.  

T
o 

re
qu

es
t 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 th

e 
A

D
 w

ith
 th

e 
de

le
ga

te
d 

fu
nc

tio
n 

fo
r 

IC
T

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

P
S

N
 O

pt
io

n 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
Je

nn
y 

Le
w

is
 / 

D
om

in
ic

 L
at

ha
m

 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

 
25

/7
/1

3 
N

on
 K

ey
 

C
ha

rg
in

g 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

  
 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
Je

nn
i H

ic
ks

 
C

A
B

IN
E

T
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 C
S

 &
 

E
&

C

Ju
ly

 2
01

3 
(T

B
C

) 
K

E
Y

B
ut

te
rm

ar
ke

t 
R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
T

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

if 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

is
he

s 
to

 
fu

nd
 th

e 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t o

f t
he

 B
ut

te
rm

ar
ke

t a
nd

 to
 

cl
ea

rly
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
op

tio
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ho
ul

d 
it 

pr
og

re
ss

 

P
la

ce
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 / 
C

hr
is

 
Je

nn
er

 

78



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
5 

of
 7

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 IT
E

M
S

 –
 J

U
L

Y
 2

01
3 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

/
B

R
IE

F
N

G
 D

A
T

E
 

IT
E

M
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 

O
&

S
C

 P
R

E
-D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
: 

A
&

G
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
ab

in
et

  
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 D

at
e 

8 
Ju

ly
 2

01
3 

M
us

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
 

A
gr

ee
d 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
11

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

fte
r 

2 
ye

ar
s.

 T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

an
 u

pd
at

e 
on

 
ho

w
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
re

co
nf

ig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 in
 

20
11

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e;

 p
er

ip
at

et
ic

 li
nk

s 
to

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
 r

es
ul

ts
. 

8 
Ju

ly
 2

01
3 

B
ud

ge
t M

on
ito

rin
g 

T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

bu
dg

et
 p

os
iti

on
. 

8 
Ju

ly
 2

01
3 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

F
ra

nc
is

 In
qu

iry
 R

ep
or

t 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
sc

ru
tin

y 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

F
ra

nc
is

 In
qu

iry
 

R
ep

or
t –

 R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 M
id

 S
ta

ffo
rd

sh
ire

 N
H

S
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
T

ru
st

 P
ub

lic
 

In
qu

iry
.

H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 S

O
C

IA
L

 C
A

R
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
  I

T
E

M
S

 –
 J

U
L

Y
 2

01
3

M
E

E
T

IN
G

/
B

R
IE

F
N

G
 D

A
T

E
 

IT
E

M
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 

O
&

S
C

 P
R

E
-D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
: 

A
&

G
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
C

ab
in

et
  

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 D

at
e 

11
 J

ul
y 

20
13

 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
T

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
a 

pr
og

re
ss

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
th

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n.

 
 

 

11
 J

ul
y 

20
13

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
fo

r 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 a

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

t c
on

ta
in

in
g 

a 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
re

po
rt

s 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 th

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
th

at
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n.
 (

Ju
ly

12
) 

11
 J

ul
y 

20
13

 
H

ea
lth

 W
at

ch
 

T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
pr

og
re

ss
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

H
ea

lth
 W

at
ch

 
 

 
11

 J
ul

y 
20

13
 

W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

s 
W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

 
 

79



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
6 

of
 7

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
R

ol
lin

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e:
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
01

3

F
in

al
 D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

e r
M

ee
ti

n
g

 / 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

at
e 

Is
su

e 
T

yp
e:

 
K

E
Y

 
B

u
d

g
et

 &
 P

o
lic

y 
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 It

em
 

(B
&

P
F

) 
 

N
on

 K
ey

R
ep

o
rt

 T
it

le
P

u
rp

o
se

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 L

ea
d

 
O

ff
ic

er

A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
6/

8/
13

 
N

/A
 

 
 

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
R

ol
lin

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e:
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
3

F
in

al
 D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

e r
M

ee
ti

n
g

 / 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

at
e 

Is
su

e 
T

yp
e:

 
K

E
Y

 
B

u
d

g
et

 &
 P

o
lic

y 
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 It

em
 (

B
&

P
F

) 
 

N
on

 K
ey

R
ep

o
rt

 T
it

le
P

u
rp

o
se

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 L

ea
d

 
O

ff
ic

er

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 P
or

tfo
lio

 
C

M
 M

C
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 
K

E
Y

W
as

te
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

 
P

la
ce

s 
&

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 / 

A
nd

y 
T

ec
to

r 
A

ud
it 

&
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

6/
9/

13
 

N
/A

 
C

ou
nt

er
-f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 
C

or
ru

pt
io

n 
P

ol
ic

ie
s 

– 
B

ie
nn

ia
l R

ev
ie

w
 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ 

D
av

id
 P

ow
el

l 

A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
6/

9/
13

 
N

/A
 

W
hi

st
le

 B
lo

w
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
– 

B
ie

nn
ia

l R
ev

ie
w

 
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
D

av
id

 P
ow

el
l 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

P
or

tfo
lio

 –
 C

M
 F

M
 

19
/0

9/
13

 
N

on
 K

ey
 

B
ud

ge
t M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
t 

T
o 

re
po

rt
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

os
iti

on
 fo

r 
bo

th
 R

ev
en

ue
 

an
d 

C
ap

ita
l. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
D

av
id

 P
ow

el
l 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 P
or

tfo
lio

 -
 

19
/0

9/
13

 
N

on
 K

ey
 

Lo
ca

l A
cc

ou
nt

  
T

o 
ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

cc
ou

nt
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
 

C
ou

nc
il 

27
/9

/1
3 

 
 

 
 

80



J:
\_

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

\_
G

en
er

al
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
tte

e\
20

13
-1

4\
[0

1]
_1

8-
Ju

n-
13

\R
ep

or
ts

\G
O

S
C

_1
8-

Ju
n-

13
_C

om
m

itt
ee

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e_
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
_E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

R
ol

lin
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

do
c 

P
ag

e
7 

of
 7

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 IT
E

M
S

 –
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
01

3 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

/
B

R
IE

F
N

G
 D

A
T

E
 

IT
E

M
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 

O
&

S
C

 P
R

E
-D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
: 

A
&

G
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

C
ab

in
et

  
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 D

at
e 

3 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 

W
as

te
 C

on
tr

ac
t u

pd
at

e 
T

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
an

 u
pd

at
e 

on
 th

e 
W

as
te

 C
on

tr
ac

t p
rio

r 
to

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

by
 C

ab
in

et

H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 S

O
C

IA
L

 C
A

R
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
  I

T
E

M
S

 –
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
01

3

M
E

E
T

IN
G

/
B

R
IE

F
N

G
 D

A
T

E
 

IT
E

M
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 

O
&

S
C

 P
R

E
-D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
: 

A
&

G
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
C

ab
in

et
  

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 D

at
e 

12
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 

R
ec

ov
er

y 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

T
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
pr

og
re

ss
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
 

12
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 

W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
T

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

s 
W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

81



82


	Agenda
	
	4 Minutes
	7 Local Development Framework
	GOSC_18-Jun-13_Local Development Framework Process_Appendix A_[Detailed Schedule of Consultation Undertaken Since 2007]

	Budget Presentation
	9 Committee Work Programme
	GOSC_18-Jun-13_Committee Work Programme_Appendix A_Draft Work Programme
	GOSC_18-Jun-13_Committee Work Programme_Appendix B_Task and Finish Reviews - Progress Report
	GOSC_18-Jun-13_Committee Work Programme_Appendix C_Executive Rolling Programme


